
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 
Monday, March 25, 2019 7:00 pm Spellman Education Center 
 

AGENDA 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
*Consent Agenda Items 

 
I. Call to Order  

 Salute to the Flag (led by Aine Harner and Anestis Kalderemtzis 
        of Penn Wood Elementary School) ................................................................................................ Mr. McCune 
 

II. Roll Call ....................................................................................................................................... Ms. Cherashore 
 

III. Minutes of the February 25, 2019 Monthly School Board Meeting ................................................ Mr. McCune 
 

IV. Approval of the March 25, 2019 School Board Meeting Agenda .................................................... Mr. McCune 
 

V. Superintendent’s Report .................................................................................................................... Dr. Scanlon 
 Student Representatives’ Report ......................................................... Amber Hawkins, East High School 
  Camilla Parkinson, Henderson High School 
  Grace Ibach, Rustin High School 
 

VI. Public Comments on Agenda Items (Sign-in Required) ............................................................. Ms. Cherashore 
 

VII. Personnel Recommendations .............................................................................................................. Dr. Ulmer 
 

VIII. Approval of Consent Agenda ........................................................................................................... Mr. McCune 
 

IX. School Board Reports 
 
Committee Reports 
 
A. Education ........................................................................................................................................ Mrs. Tiernan 

* 1. Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 
-East HS Indoor Track – State College, PA – Sat-Sun 2/23-2/24/19 
-Henderson HS Indoor Track – State College, PA – Sat-Sun 2/23-2/24/19 
-East HS Wrestling – Souderton, PA – Fri-Sat 3/1-3/2/19 
-East HS Wrestling – Hershey, PA – Wed-Sat 3/6-3/9/19 
-Rustin HS Wrestling – Hershey, PA – Wed-Sat 3/6-3/9/19 
-Henderson HS Wrestling – Hershey, PA – Thurs-Sun 3/7-3/9/19 
-Henderson HS Swimming – Lewisburg, PA – Thurs-Sat 3/14-3/16/19 
-Henderson HS DECA – Orlando, FL – Fri-Wed 4/26-5/1/19 
-Henderson HS AP-Spanish – Spain – Tues-Mon 6/16-6/22/20 
-Henderson HS Italian/Latin – Italy – Wed-Fri 6/17-6/26/20  

* 2. Approval to Establish the following Activity Account(s): 
-Peirce MS Enrichment in STEAM 
-Henderson HS Kids “4” Kids 

* 3. Approval of Revised Board Policy 918 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement,  Second Reading 
* 4. Approval of Revised Administrative Guideline 918AG1 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement 

Guidelines,  Second Reading 
* 5. Approval of New Administrative Guideline 918AG2 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement School-

Parent and Family Compacts,  Second Reading 



 
 
AGENDA Page 2 Monday, March 25, 2019 

 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
*Consent Agenda Items 

* 6. Approval of Revisions and Name Change to Board Policy 103 – Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory 
Harassment-School and Classroom Practices (formerly known as Nondiscrimination in School and 
Classroom Practices),  Second Reading 

* 7. Approval of Revisions and Name Change to Administrative Guideline 103AG1 – Report Form for 
Complaints of Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-School and Classroom Practices 
(formerly known as Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Form),  Second Reading 

* 8. Approval of Revised Board Policy 222 – Tobacco/Nicotine (formerly known as Tobacco),  Second 
Reading 

* 8. Approval of Revised Board Policy 247 – Hazing,  Second Reading 
* 9. Approval of Revised Board Policy 249 – Bullying/Cyberbullying,  Second Reading 

 
B. Pupil Services ..................................................................................................................................... Ms. Chester 

   
 
C. Personnel Dr. Shaw 

* 1. Approval of Revisions and Name Change - Board Policy 104 Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory 
Harassment-Employment Practices (formerly known as Nondiscrimination in Employment 
Practices),  Second Reading 

* 2. Approval of Revisions and Name Change - Administrative Guideline 104AG1 Report Form for 
Complaints of Discrimination/ Discriminatory Harassment - Employment Practices (formerly 
known as Report Form for Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices),  Second Reading 

* 3. Approval of Revisions and Name Change - Board Policy 323 Tobacco/Nicotine (formerly known as 
Tobacco),  Second Reading 

* 4. Approval of the MOA extending the Health Savings Account Employer contribution for each year 
employees are enrolled in the plan 

 
D. Property and Finance ................................................................................................................... Mr. Bevilacqua 

* 1. Approval of 2019-20 Food Services Management Company RFP Award 
 
Other Reports 
A. Intermediate Unit............................................................................................................................ Mrs. Tiernan 
B. PSBA Report ................................................................................................................................... Dr. Herrmann 
C. Legislative Liaison ...................................................................................................................................Dr. Shaw 
 

X. Other Business 
* 1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements Summary Schedule for 

the Period of February 1, 2019  to February 28, 2019 
* 2. Approval of the February 28, 2019 Financial Report 
* 3. Approval of the Memorandum of Understanding between Octorara Area School District and West 

Chester Area School District 
 4. Approval of Resolution to Authorize the District Solicitor to terminate the Contract between West 

Chester Area School District and ER Stuebner, Inc. as contractor for the East Goshen Elementary 
School renovations – added as an addendum to agenda March 25, 2019 

 
XI. Comments from Residents 

 
XII. Adjournment 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL BOARD—Meeting of February 25, 2019 

Documents previously distributed to Board Members are not recopied or submitted with this 
draft. Minutes of this meeting, in compliance with Section 518 of the School Laws of Pennsylvania 
and after approval by the School Board Members will be transcribed into the permanent minute 
book together with reports indicated (copy in). Routine reports and lengthy multi-page 
documents made a part of the minutes of this meeting are filed separately for permanent record. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

The West Chester Area School Board met at 7:01 p.m. in the Spellman Education Center, 782 
Springdale Dr. Exton, PA. Mr. McCune, Board President, called the meeting to order and Priscilla 
Powers and Akanksh Sharma of Peirce Middle School led the public in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Roll Call 
Members Present:  Mr. Bevilacqua, Ms. Chester, Dr. Herrmann, Mr. McCune, Dr. Shaw, Mr. 
Spackman, Mrs. Tiernan. Student Representatives: Amber Hawkins, East High School; Miriam 
Saadeh for Camille Parkinson, Henderson High School; Grace Ibach, Rustin High School. 
 
Members Absent: Mr. Gallen, Mr. Tabakin 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Approval of January 28, 2019 Board Minutes 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Mr. Bevilacqua and seconded by Dr. Herrmann to approve the 
minutes of the January 28, 2019 School Board Meeting.  
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 7-0. 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Mr. McCune announced that the Board met in Executive Session on Tuesday, February 19, 2019 
regarding a legal matter.  
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Approval of February 25, 2019 Meeting Agenda 
 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Dr. Shaw and seconded by Ms. Chester to approve the 
February 25, 2019 meeting agenda. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 7-0. 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Public Comments on Agenda Items 
Judi DiFonzo thanked the board for having the pipeline intervention resolutioin on the agenda 
tonight.  
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 



Approval of Personnel Recommendations—Dr. Ulmer (Copy In) 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Dr. Shaw and seconded by Ms. Chester to approve the 
Personnel Recommendations as presented.  
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 7-0. 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Approval of Consent Agenda 
 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Mr. Bevilacqua and seconded by Mr. Spackman to approve the 
following Consent Agenda Items:  

Education 
1. Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 

Rustin HS Model UN– Philadelphia, PA – Thurs-Sun 1/31-2/3/19 
Rustin HS Cheerleading – Orlando, FL – Thurs-Sun 2/7-2/10/19 
East HS DECA – Hershey, PA – Wed-Fri 2/20-2/22/19 
Henderson HS DECA – Hershey, PA – Wed-Fri 2/20-2/22/19 
Henderson HS Band – Doylestown, PA – Thurs-Sat 3/7-3/9/19 
Henderson HS FBLA – Hershey, PA – Sun-Wed 4/7-4/10/19 
Rustin HS Choral – New York City, NY – Fri-Sat 4/12-4/13/19 

2. Approval of Revised Board Policy 918 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement, First Reading 
3. Approval of Revised Administrative Guideline 918AG1 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement 

Guidelines, First Reading 
4. Approval of New Administrative Guideline 918AG2 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement 

School-Parent and Family Compacts, First Reading 
5. Approval of Revisions and Name Change to Board Policy 103 – 

Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-School and Classroom Practices (formerly 
known as Nondiscrimination in School and Classroom Practices), First Reading 

6. Approval of Revisions and Name Change to Administrative Guideline 103AG1 – Report Form 
for Complaints of Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-School and Classroom 
Practices (formerly known as Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Form), First Reading 

7. Approval of Revised Board Policy 222 – Tobacco/Nicotine (formerly known as Tobacco), First 
Reading 

8. Approval of Revised Board Policy 247 – Hazing, First Reading 
9. Approval of Revised Board Policy 249 – Bullying/Cyberbullying, First Reading 

 
Pupil Services 
1. Approval of Revised Board Policy 103.1 Nondiscrimination - Qualified Students with 

Disabilities, Second Reading 
2. Approval of Revised Administrative Guideline 103.1AG 1 Nondiscrimination - Qualified 

Students with Disabilities, Second Reading 
3. Approval of New Administrative Guideline 103.1AG2 Report Form for Complaints of 

Discrimination - Qualified Students with Disabilities, Second Reading 
4. Approval of Four Special Education Settlement Agreements 

 
Personnel 
1. Approval of Revisions and Name Change - Board Policy 104 Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory 

Harassment-Employment Practices (formerly known as Nondiscrimination in Employment 
Practices), First Reading 



2. Approval of Revisions and Name Change - Administrative Guideline 104AG1 Report Form for 
Complaints of Discrimination/ Discriminatory Harassment - Employment Practices (formerly 
known as Report Form for Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices), First Reading 

3. Approval of Revisions and Name Change - Board Policy 323 Tobacco/Nicotine (formerly 
known as Tobacco), First Reading 

 
Property & Finance 
1. Approval of Change Orders – Renovations and Additions to Exton Elementary School and East 

Goshen Elementary School 
Exton Elementary School 
 

GC-036 Install elevated slab at existing stairs to old generator room. $6,040.00 

GC-037 Remove additional CMU at door 305, add lintel and new CMU. $4,766.00 

GC-038 Added 3 additional courses of CMU at loading dock. $1,270.00 

GC-039 Additional X-bracing in gym joist webs. $8,471.00 

GC-040 Rebuild dumpster enclosure wall. $2,977.00 

GC-041 Additional door hardware. $1,124.00 

GC-042 Repair quarry tile floor at new storage room. $511.00 

EC-008 Increase conduit and wiring size for kiln. $492.27 

EC-009 Change area of Protection panel. $390.00 

EC-010 Wire hot water heating pump. $481.50 

EC-011 Add remote start wiring to generator package. $527.50 

EC-012 Wire smoke damper for Art Rm. $1,644.00 

EC-013 Rework existing electrical junction near door 114. $1,736.00 

EC-014 Add grounding circuits to Phase 3 area circuits. $5,954.12 

EC-015 Add occupancy controls, wiring to cafeteria, hallways. $11,711.51 

EC-016 Add data drops, sensors, emergency lights to 4 modular 
classrooms. 

$7,659.24 

EC-017 Purchase extra LED parking lights, bases. $3,800.00 

EC-018 Provide and install 110 amp, 3-pole breaker for condensing unit 
#7. 

$1,457.77 

EC-019 Disconnect exhaust fan shunt trip, provide 120v feed to Panel K. $734.75 

EC-020 Disconnect makeup air shunt trip, connect to Ansul system. $550.00 

EC-021 Add conduit and wiring to exhaust fan EF-20 to Panel F1. $1,298.00 

EC-022 Re-wire feeds to 6 modular classrooms. $9,258.00 

EC-023 Extend power, fire alarm, communications to future addition 
area. 

$3,890.00 

EC-024 Credit for deleted work. -$2,697.00 

MC-002 Add 3 shrouds for Ulvs in Rms. 303,304,305. $666.23 

MC-003 Install drip pan in Tele-Data Rm. $1,484.63 

MC-004 Replace damaged insulation on chilled water piping. $6,812.63 

MC-005 Add 2 pressure transducers to hot water heating system. $3,567.94 

MC-006 Provide and install duct detector for RTU-1. $3,366.31 

MC-007 Add required panel to kitchen exhaust hood. $6,777.36 

MC-008 Install FPV-14 in new speech rm. $14,043.44 

MC-009 Add isolation valves to chilled water system. $15,436.35 

MC-010 Install condensate lines from Ulvs to RWC. $2,159.26 

MC-011 Increase pipe size in Area B. $19,916.68 

MC-012 Insulation of Area B piping. $4,738.85 



MC-013 Demolition and replacement of HVAC piping in Area C. $24,878.16 

MC-014 Insulate new piping in Area C. $19,482.83 

PC-010 Install 3” valve on main water line. $829.71 

PC-011 Add check valves for ventilator condensate drains Area B. $1,297.53 

PC-012 Provide and install roof drain and piping, B, C roof. $4,305.88 

PC-013 Add 3” water valve, Area C. $1,323.87 

PC-014 Relocate new kitchen sink. $368.32 

PC-015 Replace piping under existing sinks, C, E sections. $10,537.68 

PC-016 Re-route kitchen exhaust, remove emergency generator 
exhaust. 

$1,143.79 

PC-017 Repair clogged vent pipe. $2,065.21 

PC-018 Add 2” ball valve to kitchen water supply line. $1,216.64 

PC-019 Relocate sprinkler main in Rm. 406. $2,556.90 

SC-006 Replace broken SW drains in playground. $3,500.00 

SC-007 Remove dumpster enclosure wall. $1,200.00 

SC-008 Excavate, steel tube, concrete for new school sign base. $4,200.00 

SC-009 Additional street parking signs. $2,640.00 

SC-010 Replace sidewalk damaged by construction. $2,200.00 

SC-011 Extended height of fence enclosures. $5,606.00 

RC-003 Replace soffit at loading dock. $6,302.00 

RC-004 Install EPDM flashing material at new gym addition. $12,004.00 

 ADDITIONAL CLASSROOMS  

GC-001 Additional concrete. $1,017.00 

GC-002 Provide astragals on doors C006, C007. $1,603.00 

GC-003 Credit for District purchased fritz tile. -$14,000.00 

GC-004 Install new bulkhead at C005A doors. $986.00 

GC-005 Provide and install additional lintels. $1,277.00 

MC-001 Adjust and repair existing sanitary line. $912.78 
 

East Goshen Elementary School 

EC-001 Replace Panel LS2 with fusible panelboard. $2,395.80 

EC-002  Add enclosure to emergency generator. $3,949.00 

EC-003 Change remote wiring to generator plug. $257.00 

EC-004 Add remote start control for generator and receptacle. $4,706.00 

EC-005 Pull 600’ run of isolated ground cable for Panel DP. $3,602.00 

EC-006 Rework existing generator panels. $5,792.00 

EC-007 Relocate electric to relocated RTU. $4,406.00 

EC-008 Replace 3-way light switches with low voltage control switches. $396.00 

EC-009 Additional fire alarm device installed. $19,420.99 

EC-010 Reconstruct circuits to existing panel HVP-1. $5,419.33 

EC-011 Refeed power feed to portable classrooms. $847.59 

EC-012 Additional fire alarm devices. $15,584.00 

EC-013 Rewire switching of lighting in conference room. $357.79 

EC-014 Rewire lighting in faculty dining area. $832.72 

EC-015 Troubleshoot and partial rewire of existing PA system. $3,238.65 

EC-016 Synchronize existing fire alarm system. $8,510.20 

MC-001 Relocate RTU-1. $2,701.23 

MC-002 Credit for equipment curbs in lieu of isolation rails. -$4,750.00 



 

PC-001 Re-route existing Kindergarten room sink drain. $3,185.00 

PC-002 Re-route existing RWC at Area A/B new addition. $6,282.00 

AAC-001 Revise method of floor tile removal. $16,824.00 

2. Approval of 2019-20 E-Rate Bids 

En-Net Services Axiom Fiber Optic Transceivers $ 16,011.30 

CDWG Aruba/HPE Wireless   

 Access Points and Network Switches $258,863.03 
 

 
Other Business 
1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements Summary 

Schedule for the Period of January 1, 2019 to January 31, 2019 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FEBRUARY 25, 2019 

STATEMENT OF DISBURSEMENTS SUMMARY 

FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2019 - JANUARY 31, 2019     

    

GENERAL FUND DISBURSEMENTS 15,962,774.08   
 Includes Technology, Federal 
Programs and any Special State Funds 

 

 
BILLS PAID 15,962,774.08  

 

 
INVESTMENTS 0.00  

 

    

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 
 

324,603.20      

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
 

889,181.04      

SPECIAL REVENUE - Athletics 
 

13,340.60      

TRUST FUNDS 
  

8,562.64      

CAFETERIA 
  

390,069.79      

STUDENT ACTIVITY FUND DISBURSEMENTS 162,070.91      

TRUST AND AGENCY FUND DISBURSEMENTS 35,665.66      

    

 
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 17,786,267.92      

    

NOTE: A copy of the details of the above disbursements is available for review from the Board 
Secretary. 

2. Approval of the January 31, 2019 Financial Report 
 



On roll call vote to approve the above Consent Agenda Items, all members present voted 
“aye.” Motion carried 7-0. 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Committee Reports 
 
Pupil Services Committee—Ms. Chester 
 
Approval of Sandra Bradley’s Translator Contract  
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Ms. Chester and seconded by Mrs. Tiernan to approve Sandra 
Bradley’s Translator Contract at a rate of $34.59/hour not to exceed 30 hours a week without 
District written approval with the term ending on June 30, 2019. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 7-0. 
 
Approval of Charles A. Melton Arts & Education Center Lease Agreement  
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Ms. Chester and seconded by Dr. Herrmann to approve the 
lease agreement with the Charles A. Melton Arts & Education Center from July 1, 2019 through 
June 30, 2021 at an annual rental cost of $142,800. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 7-0. 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Property and Finance Committee—Mr. Bevilacqua 
 
Approval of the 2019-20 Technology Projects in the Capital Reserve Fund 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Mr. Bevilacqua and seconded by Dr. Herrmann to approve the 
2019-20 technology projects in the Capital Reserve Fund not to exceed a total budget of 
$4,035,336.00. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 7-0. 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Other Business 
 
Approval of Resolution to Authorize the District Solicitor to File with the Pennsylvania Public 
Utility Commission a Petition to Intervene in a Formal Safety Complaint against Sunoco/Energy 
Transfer Partners 
 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Mr. Bevilacqua and seconded by Ms. Chester to approve the 
Resolution to Authorize the District Solicitor to file with the Pennsylvania Public Utility 
Commission a Petition to intervene in a Formal Safety Complaint against Sunoco/Energy Transfer 
Partners. 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

February 25, 2019 

RESOLUTION 

BACKGROUND. 



 Sunoco Pipeline, L.P. (“Sunoco”) is in the process of repurposing an existing pipeline and 

installing new pipelines to transport hazardous, highly volatile liquids (“HVLs”).  Six of the West 

Chester Area School District (“District”) schools or buildings are within 6,000 feet of the pipeline, 

with four of those buildings located within 3,000 feet.   

 For the past three years, the Administration and School Board of the District have 

investigated this pipeline project, attended informational meetings, engaged the emergency 

responders of Chester County, and prepared a Hazardous Materials Emergency Plan.  In addition, 

the superintendent has written to representatives of Sunoco, the Secretary of the Pennsylvania 

Public Utilities Commission (“PUC”), the governor, and other state legislators, raising safety 

concerns and inquiring about measures taken to ensure the protection of students who are 

attending District schools near the path of the pipeline installations.  So far, the responses to these 

inquiries have not been satisfactory. 

 On November 19, 2018, Meghan Flynn and others filed a complaint against Sunoco before 

the PUC, essentially requesting an Order directing Sunoco to cease all pipeline installation 

activities.1  Subsequently, a variety of parties have intervened in the Flynn litigation, including the 

following school districts: Downingtown Area, Rose Tree Media, Twin Valley. In addition three 

municipalities; West Whiteland, East Goshen, and West Goshen have filed to intervene.  Some of 

the interveners have focused less on seeking complete cessation of pipeline installation activities, 

and rather more on requiring the implementation of safety measures.  The purpose of this 

resolution is to authorize the District solicitor to prepare and file in the Flynn case before the PUC 

a Petition for Permission to Intervene so that the District may request the PUC to Order the 

implementation of more safety measures. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 

 AND NOW, this 25th day of February, 2019, it is hereby resolved that the District solicitor 

is directed to prepare and file in the Flynn case before the Pennsylvania Public Utilities Commission 

a Petition for Permission to Intervene in order for the District to request that the PUC issue an 

Order requiring Sunoco to implement more safety measures.   

ATTEST: 
 BOARD OF SCHOOL DIRECTORS OF THE 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 By:  

Linda Cherashore 
Board Secretary 

 Chris McCune 
President 

 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 7-0. 
 

                                                           
1 In Re: Meghan Flynn, et al. v. Sunoco Pipeline, L.P., Docket Numbers: C-2018-3006116; P-2018-3006117. 



~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Comments from Residents 
Judi DiFonzo stated that the documentary film “The Kids we Lose” which addresses student 
behavioral challenges will be shown in March in Delaware County. 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Mr. McCune read the following quote, ”The Time Is Always Right To Do What Is Right.” ~ Dr. 
Martin Luther King, Jr. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Adjournment: 
BOARD ACTION: On motion by Mr. Spackman, seconded by Dr. Herrmann, the Board, on voice 
vote, agreed to adjourn at 7:52 p.m.  
 
 
 

 

Board Secretary 
 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – March 25, 2019 - p.1 

 
I. Removal from Payroll 

a. Resignations 

1. Kayla McVey, 1.0 Instructional Assistant at East Bradford ES, effective 3/20/19. 

2. Michael Stitley, 1.0 Security Services Supervisor, District, effective 3/15/19. 

  

b. Retirements 

      1. Rita Baldino, 1.0 Social Studies Teacher at Rustin HS, effective the end of the 2018-2019 school year, 
20 years of service. 

      2. Denise Daniels, .4 Science Teacher/.6 Computer Science Teacher at Stetson MS, effective at the end 
of the 2018-2019 school year, 15 years of service. 

      3. Jill Dunscomb, 1.0 Science Teacher at Rustin HS, effective the end of the 2018-2019 school year, 15 
years of service. 

      4. Patricia Green, 1.0 Mathematics Teacher at Stetson MS, effective 6/30/19, 48 years of service. 

      5. Tracy Heim, 1.0 Social Studies Teacher at East HS, effective at the end of the 2018-2019 school year, 
35 years of service. 

      6. Shirley LeClerc, 1.0 Librarian at Rustin HS, effective the end of the 2018-2019 school year, 16 years 
of service. 

      7. Jackie Longnecker, 1.0 Intervention Specialist at East HS, effective at the end of the 2018-2019 
school year, 30 years of service. 

      8. Barbara Marks, 1.0 Family Consumer Science Teacher at Stetson MS, effective 6/30/19, 24 years of 
service. 

      9. Lynn Moose, 1.0 Instructional Assistant at Henderson HS, effective 4/12/19, 18 years of service. 

    10. Helen Pellak, 1.0 Secretary to Principal at Fern Hill ES, effective 6/30/19, 22 years of service. 

    11.   Claire Pettigrew, 1.0 Music Teacher at .5 Fern Hill ES/.5 Mary C Howse ES, effective the end of the 
2018-2019 school year, 35 years of service. 

  

c. Termination 

      1. Corey Boyer, 1.0 2nd shift Custodian at East HS, effective 3/7/19. 

      2. Jalen Cain, 1.0 2nd Shift Custodian at East HS, effective 3/7/19. 

 

II. Additions to Payroll 

a. Professional Staff: Contract 

1. Hillary Soring 

 Placement 1.0 Special Education Teacher at Stetson MS, Professional Employee (Tenured), 
effective 8/19/19, Level 2, Step 5, $52,800 + $400 Sp. Ed. Stipend. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from West Chester University 2010-2013 

 Experience Special Education Teacher at Chichester School District 7/2014-present. 

 Certification Instructional I, Grades PK-4, Special Education PK-8 

 

b. Professional Staff: Long Term Substitute - None 

 

c. Administrative Staff: Contract - None 

 

d. Support Staff: Non Bargaining - None 

  

e. Support Staff: Contract 

1. Allen Maddox 

 Placement 1.0 Instructional Assistant at East Bradford ES, 7 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 194 
days/year, effective date 3/20/19, Group 1, Step 3, $13.04. 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – March 25, 2019 - p.2 

 
      2. Allyson McCullough 

 Placement 1.0 Instructional Assistant at Fern Hill ES, 7 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 194 
days/year, effective date 3/12/18, Group 1, Step 2, $12.74. 

     3. Laurie McGuriman 

 Placement 1.0 Instructional Assistant at Stetson MS, 7 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 194 
days/year, effective 3/20/19, Group 1, Step 3, $13.04. 

      4. Elizabeth Persons 

 Placement 1.0 Instructional Assistant at Westtown Thornbury ES, 7 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 
194 days/year, effective 3/13/19, Group 1, Step 2, $12.74. 

      5. Tracey Pusey 

 Placement 1.0 Instructional Assistant at Rustin HS, 7 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 194 days/year, 
effective 3/18/19, Group 1, Step 3, $13.04. 

      6. Stacey Spiegel 

 Placement 1.0 Instructional Assistant at Fern Hill ES, 7 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 194 
days/year, effective 3/12/19, Group 1, Step 3, $13.04. 

      7. Michael Stape 

 Placement 1.0 Instructional Assistant at Rustin HS, 7 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 194 days/year, 
effective 3/21/19, Group 1, Step 3, $13.04. 

      8. Jennifer Stott 

 Placement 1.0 Instructional Assistant at Westtown Thornbury ES, 7 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 
194 days/year, effective 3/12/19, Group 1, Step 2, $12.74. 

        

f. Support Staff: Substitute 

1. Nakia Anderson Substitute Custodian, $15/hr. 

      2. Jimmie Richards Substitute Custodian, $15/hr. 

 

III. Personnel Events  

a. Status Change – None 
 

b. Transfer - Voluntary 

 Name Type From To Effective Date 

     1. Sarah Jacien Professional 1.0 Grade 5 
Teacher at MCH 

1.0 Temporary 
Building Substitute 
at Fugett MS 

3/18/19 

 
 

IV. Personnel Leave 

a. Sabbatical Leave 

 Name Position Effective Date Ending Date 

1. Amanda 
Wheeler 

1.0 Kindergarten 
Teacher at Hillsdale ES 

August 19, 2019 June 9, 2020 

     

b. Unpaid Leave 

 Name Position Effective Date Ending Date 

 1. David Kalis 1.0 Instructional 
Assistant at Rustin HS 

3/24/19 4/23/19 

 
 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – March 25, 2019 - p.3 

 
V. Additional Information 

1.  Kelsey Morrow’s start date was 3/6/19. 

 

 

V. Supplemental Contracts 

Last Name 
First 

Name Location Season Step 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

All seasons ‘18-‘19 
Additions:       
Ascareggi James SMS Spring 1 100% $2,772 Head Softball Coach 

Boyd James EHS Spring 5 100% $4,572 Asst. Girls Lacrosse Coach 

Busz Gerald SMS Spring 1 100% $2,156 Asst. Softball Coach 

Nallathambi Jayanthi FHE Annual N/A 100% $34.59/hr. Bus Duty 

Pettigrew Claire FHE Annual N/A 100% $34.59/hr. Bus Duty 

Smith Thomas FMS Spring 2 100% $2,520 Asst. Track Coach 

Wethey Brian RHS Spring 1 50% $1,848 Asst. Boys Track Coach 

Wright Taylor RHS Spring 1 100% $3,696 Asst. Softball Coach 

        

Removals:       
Minker Keith RHS Spring 4 50% $2,208 Asst. Baseball Coach 

        

Adjustments:       
Cochran Keith RHS Spring 4 50% $2,208 Asst. Boys Track Coach 

Jacien Sarah MCH Annual 2 80% $2,268  Science Advocate 

Jacien  Sarah MCH Annual 1 80% $739.20 Safety Patrol Coordinator 

Loescher-
Velazquez David SMS Spring 4 100% $1,104 6th Grade Track Coach 

Marabella Brandon HHS Spring 4 100% $1,104 Spring Intramurals 

Monaghan John EHS Spring 5 100% $1,143 Spring Intramurals 

Ronayne Jennifer RHS Spring 4 100% $4,416 Asst. Girls Track Coach 

Wittman Greg RHS Spring 4 100% $4,416 Asst. Baseball Coach 
        

 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 
Monday, March 25, 2019           7:00 PM Spellman Education Center 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

I recommend the Board approve the following consent agenda items: 
  
VII. School Board Reports 
 

Committee Reports 
 

Education 
1. Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 

-East HS Indoor Track – State College, PA – Sat-Sun 2/23-2/24/19 
-Henderson HS Indoor Track – State College, PA – Sat-Sun 2/23-2/24/19 
-East HS Wrestling – Souderton, PA – Fri-Sat 3/1-3/2/19 
-East HS Wrestling – Hershey, PA – Wed-Sat 3/6-3/9/19 
-Rustin HS Wrestling – Hershey, PA – Wed-Sat 3/6-3/9/19 
-Henderson HS Wrestling – Hershey, PA – Thurs-Sun 3/7-3/9/19 
-Henderson HS Swimming – Lewisburg, PA – Thurs-Sat 3/14-3/16/19 
-Henderson HS DECA – Orlando, FL – Fri-Wed 4/26-5/1/19 
-Henderson HS AP-Spanish – Spain – Tues-Mon 6/16-6/22/20 
-Henderson HS Italian/Latin – Italy – Wed-Fri 6/17-6/26/20 

2. Approval to Establish the following Activity Account(s): 
-Peirce MS Enrichment in STEAM 
-Henderson HS Kids “4” Kids 

3. Approval of Revised Board Policy 918 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement, Second Reading 
4. Approval of Revised Administrative Guideline 918AG1 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement 

Guidelines, Second Reading 
5. Approval of New Administrative Guideline 918AG2 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement School-

Parent and Family Compacts, Second Reading 
6. Approval of Revisions and Name Change to Board Policy 103 – Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory 

Harassment-School and Classroom Practices (formerly known as Nondiscrimination in School and 
Classroom Practices), Second Reading 

7. Approval of Revisions and Name Change to Administrative Guideline 103AG1 – Report Form for 
Complaints of Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-School and Classroom Practices 
(formerly known as Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Form), Second Reading 

8. Approval of Revised Board Policy 222 – Tobacco/Nicotine (formerly known as Tobacco), Second 
Reading 

9. Approval of Revised Board Policy 247 – Hazing, Second Reading 
 Approval of Revised Board Policy 249 – Bullying/Cyberbullying, Second Reading 

 
Pupil Services 
  
 
Personnel 
1. Approval of Revisions and Name Change - Board Policy 104 Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory 

Harassment-Employment Practices (formerly known as Nondiscrimination in Employment 
Practices), Second Reading 

2. Approval of Revisions and Name Change - Administrative Guideline 104AG1 Report Form for 
Complaints of Discrimination/ Discriminatory Harassment - Employment Practices (formerly known 
as Report Form for Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices), Second Reading 



 
CONSENT AGENDA  Page 2 Monday, March 25, 2019 

3. Approval of Revisions and Name Change - Board Policy 323 Tobacco/Nicotine (formerly known as 
Tobacco), Second Reading 

4. Approval of the MOA extending the Health Savings Account Employer contribution for each year 
employees are enrolled in the plan 

 
Property & Finance 
1. Approval of 2019-20 Food Services Management Company RFP Award 
  

 
Other Reports 

 
Other Business 
1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements Summary Schedule 

for the Period of February 1, 2019  to February 28, 2019 
2. Approval of the February 28, 2019 Financial Report 
3. Approval of the Memorandum of Understanding between Octorara Area School District and West 

Chester Area School District 
 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

Discussion:   

Action: Motion:  

       
 Vote: Yes:  No:   

Background   
These action items are either routine or high consensus items and may not require discussion by the Board.  If any Board 
member wishes to discuss any action item, the Board President will move it from the consent agenda to its appropriate place 
on the regular agenda. 
Responsible Staff: Dr. Scanlon 

 



March 25, 2019 

Action Items 

Approval of the following Study/Excursion Trip(s) 
Approval is requested of the following Study/Excursion Trip(s): 
- East HS Indoor Track – State College, PA – Sat-Sun 2/23-2/24/19 
- Henderson HS Indoor Track – State College, PA – Sat-Sun 2/23-2/24/19 
- East HS Wrestling – Souderton, PA – Fri-Sat 3/1-3/2/19 
- East HS Wrestling – Hershey, PA – Wed-Sat 3/6-3/9/19 
- Rustin HS Wrestling – Hershey, PA – Wed-Sat 3/6-3/9/19 
- Henderson HS Wrestling – Hershey, PA – Thurs-Sun 3/7-3/9/19 
- Henderson HS Swimming – Lewisburg, PA – Thurs-Sat 3/14-3/16/19 
- Henderson HS DECA – Orlando, FL – Fri-Wed 4/26-5/1/19 
- Henderson HS AP-Spanish – Spain – Tues-Mon 6/16-6/22/20 
- Henderson HS Italian/Latin – Italy – Wed-Fri 6/17-6/26/20 

I so move. 

Approval of the following Activity Account(s) 
Approval is requested of the following Activity Account(s): 
- Peirce MS Enrichment in STEAM 
- Henderson HS Kids “4” Kids 

I so move. 

Approval of Revised Board Policy 918 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement, Second Reading  
Approval is requested of Revised Board Policy 918 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement, Second Reading 

I so move. 

Approval of Revised Administrative Guideline 918AG1 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement 
Guidelines, Second Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Administrative Guideline 918AG1 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement 
Guidelines, Second Reading 

I so move. 

Approval of New Administrative Guideline 918AG2 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement School-Parent and 
Family Compacts, Second Reading 
Approval is requested of New Administrative Guideline 918AG2 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement School-Parent 
and Family Compacts, Second Reading 

I so move. 



Education Committee 
February 25, 2019 

2 

Approval of Revisions and Name Change to Board Policy 103 – Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-
School and Classroom Practices (formerly known as Nondiscrimination in School and Classroom Practices),  
Second Reading   
Approval is requested of Revisions and Name Change to Board Policy 103 – Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory 
Harassment-School and Classroom Practices (formerly known as Nondiscrimination in School and Classroom 
Practices), Second Reading 

I so move. 

Approval of Revisions and Name Change to Administrative Guideline 103AG1 – Report Form for Complaints of 
Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-School and Classroom Practices (formerly known as 
Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Form), Second Reading   
Approval is requested of Revisions and Name Change to Administrative Guideline 103AG1 – Report Form for 
Complaints of Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-School and Classroom Practices (formerly known as 
Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Form), Second Reading 

I so move. 

Approval of Revised Board Policy 222 – Tobacco, Second Reading   
Approval is requested of Revised Board Policy 222 – Tobacco, Second Reading 

I so move. 

Approval of Revised Board Policy 247 – Hazing, Second Reading 

Approval is requested of Revised Board Policy 247 – Hazing, Second Reading 

I so move. 

Approval of Revised Board Policy 249 – Bullying/Cyberbullying, Second Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Board Policy 249 – Bullying/Cyberbullying, Second Reading 

I so move. 



     Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2019 

 Start: 5:45       Finish: 6:53 

Attending Committee Members: Sue Tiernan, Joyce Chester, Randell Spackman 
Other Board Members:  Chris McCune, Gary Bevilacqua, Karen Herrmann, Kate Shaw 
Administration: Robert Sokolowski, Sara Missett, Tammi Florio, Judy Kay Maxwell, Dennis Brown 

Items listed on the Education Committee Regular Agenda of January 14, 2019: 
1. Approval of the Education Committee Meeting Minutes of January 14, 2019
2. Presentation about Flexible Seating
3. Approval of Revised Board Policy 918 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement
4. Approval of Revised Administrative Guideline 918AG1 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement

Guidelines
5. Approval of New Administrative Guideline 918AG2 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement School-

Parent and Family Compacts
6. Approval of revisions and name change to Board Policy 103 – Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory
7. Harassment-School and Classroom Practices (formerly known as Nondiscrimination in School and

Classroom Practices)
8. Approval of revisions and name change to Administrative Guideline 103AG1 – Report Form for

Complaints of Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-School and Classroom Practices
(formerly known as Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Form)

9. Approval of Revised Board Policy 222 – Tobacco/Nicotine
10. Approval of Revised Board Policy 247 – Hazing
11. Approval of Revised Board Policy 249 – Bullying/Cyberbullying

A. Committee Actions and Outcomes: 
1. Approval of the Education Committee Meeting Minutes of January 14, 2019  VOTE:  _3__ - _0__
2. Approval of Revised Board Policy 918 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement  VOTE:  _3__ - _0__
3. Approval of Revised Administrative Guideline 918AG1 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement

Guidelines  VOTE:  _3__ - _0__
4. Approval of New Administrative Guideline 918AG2 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement School-

Parent and Family Compacts  VOTE:  _3__ - _0__
5. Approval of revisions and name change to Board Policy 103 – Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory  VOTE:  _3__ - _0_
6. Harassment-School and Classroom Practices (formerly known as Nondiscrimination in School and

Classroom Practices)  VOTE:  _3__ - _0__
7. Approval of revisions and name change to Administrative Guideline 103AG1 – Report Form for

Complaints of Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-School and Classroom Practices
(formerly known as Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Form)  VOTE:  _3__ - _0__

8. Approval of Revised Board Policy 222 – Tobacco/Nicotine   VOTE:  _3__ - _0__
9. Approval of Revised Board Policy 247 – Hazing  VOTE:  _3__ - _0__
10. Approval of Revised Board Policy 249 – Bullying/Cyberbullying VOTE:  _3__ - _0__



Education Committee Minutes -2-  

 
 
B. Items to be placed on the upcoming Board Agenda:  

 Approval of Revised Board Policy 918 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement   

 Approval of Revised Administrative Guideline 918AG1 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement 
Guidelines   

 Approval of New Administrative Guideline 918AG2 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement School- 
Parent and Family Compacts   

 Approval of revisions and name change to Board Policy 103 – Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory   
Harassment-School and Classroom Practices (formerly known as Nondiscrimination in School and 
Classroom Practices) 

 Approval of revisions and name change to Administrative Guideline 103AG1 – Report Form for 
Complaints of Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-School and Classroom Practices 
(formerly known as Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Form)   

 Approval of Revised Board Policy 222 – Tobacco/Nicotine    

 Approval of Revised Board Policy 247 – Hazing   

 Approval of Revised Board Policy 249 – Bullying/Cyberbullying  
 

C. Items to be placed on the upcoming Board Consent Agenda:  
Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 

 Rustin HS Model UN– Philadelphia, PA – Thurs-Sun 1/31-2/3/19 

 Rustin HS Cheerleading – Orlando, FL – Thurs-Sun 2/7-2/10/19 

 East HS DECA – Hershey, PA – Wed-Fri 2/20-2/22/19 

 Henderson HS DECA – Hershey, PA – Wed-Fri 2/20-2/22/19 

 Henderson HS Band – Doylestown, PA – Thurs-Sat 3/7-3/9/19 

 Henderson HS FBLA – Hershey, PA – Sun-Wed 4/7-4/10/19 

 Rustin HS  Choral – New York City, NY – Fri-Sat 4/12-4/13/19 

 



  
     Meeting Minutes 

March 11, 2019 
        Start:   7:08  Finish: 7:59  

 
Attending Committee Members: Sue Tiernan, Randell Spackman, M. Christopher Tabakin 
Other Board Members:  Chris McCune, Gary Bevilacqua, Brian Gallen, Karen Herrmann, Kate Shaw 
Administration: Robert Sokolowski, Sara Missett, Tammi Florio, Steven Werner 
 

Items listed on the Education Committee Regular Agenda of March 11, 2019: 
1. Approval of the Education Committee Meeting Minutes of February 11, 2019  
2. Full-Day Kindergarten and First Grade Update 
3. Act 158 of 2018 Update 
 

A. Committee Actions and Outcomes: 
1. Approval of the Education Committee Meeting Minutes of February 11, 2019  VOTE:  _3__ - _0__ 

 

B. Items to be placed on the upcoming Board Consent Agenda:  
Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 

 East HS Indoor Track – State College, PA – Sat-Sun 2/23-2/24/19 

 Henderson HS Indoor Track – State College, PA – Sat-Sun 2/23-2/24/19 

 East HS Wrestling – Souderton, PA – Fri-Sat 3/1-3/2/19 

 East HS Wrestling – Hershey, PA – Wed-Sat 3/6-3/9/19 

 Rustin HS Wrestling – Hershey, PA – Wed-Sat 3/6-3/9/19 

 Henderson HS Wrestling – Hershey, PA – Thurs-Sun 3/7-3/9/19 

 Henderson HS Swimming – Lewisburg, PA – Thurs-Sat 3/14-3/16/19 

 Henderson HS DECA – Orlando, FL – Fri-Wed 4/26-5/1/19 

 Henderson HS AP-Spanish – Spain – Tues-Mon 6/16-6/22/20 

 Henderson HS Italian/Latin – Italy – Wed-Fri 6/17-6/26/20 
 

Approval to Establish the following Activity Account(s): 

 Peirce MS Enrichment in STEAM 

 Henderson HS Kids “4” Kids 
 

Second Reading Approval of the following School Board Policies and Administrative Guideline(s). These policies 
and guidelines were reviewed at the February Combined Pupil Services and Education Committee Meeting and they 
were first reading approved at the February 25, 2019 board meeting. There have been no further revisions to the 
policies and guidelines below: 

 Approval of Revised Board Policy 918 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement  

 Approval of Revised Administrative Guideline 918AG1 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement Guidelines  

 Approval of New Administrative Guideline 918AG2 – Title I Parent and Family Engagement School-Parent and 
Family Compacts  



Education Committee Minutes -2-  

 

 Approval of Revisions and Name Change to Board Policy 103 – Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-
School and Classroom Practices (formerly known as Nondiscrimination in School and Classroom Practices)  

 Approval of Revisions and Name Change to Administrative Guideline 103AG1 – Report Form for Complaints of 
Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-School and Classroom Practices (formerly known as 
Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Form)  

 Approval of Revised Board Policy 222 – Tobacco/Nicotine (formerly known as Tobacco)  
Second Reading Approval of the following School Board Policies (Continued): 

 Approval of Revised Board Policy 247 – Hazing  
Approval of Revised Board Policy 249 – Bullying/Cyberbullying 



























2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/2

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

Book Policy Manual

Section 900 Community

Title Copy of Title I Parent and Family Engagement

Code 918

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised September 25, 2017

Last Reviewed July 27, 2015

Purpose
 
The Board recognizes that parent, and family engagement contributes to the achievement of academic
standards by students participating in Title I programs. The Board views the education of students as a
cooperative effort among the school,families, parents, guardians, and community.
 
Definition
Parent and Family (Family Member): These terms are used interchangeably and shall include
caregivers, a legal guardian or other person standing in loco parentis such as a grandparent or
stepparent with whom the child lives, a person who is legally responsible for the child’s
welfare, or a legally appointed Education Decision Maker of a child participating in a Title I
program.
 
Authority
 
In compliance with federal law, the district and families, parents, and guardians of students participating
in Title I programs shall jointly develop and agree upon a written parent and family engagement policy.
When developing and implementing this policy, the district shall ensure the policy describes how the
district will:[1]

1. Involve families, parents, and guardians in the joint development of the district's overall Title I plan
and the process of school review and improvement. 
 

2. Provide the coordination, technical assistance, and other support necessary to assist participating
schools in planning and implementing effective parent and family engagement activities to improve
student academic achievement and school performance, which may include consultations with
appropriate community resources. 
 

3. Develop activities that promote the schools' and parents'/guardians', and families' capacity for
strong parental engagement.  
 

4. Coordinate and integrate parent and family engagement strategies with appropriate programs, as
provided by law. 
 

5. Involve families, parents, and guardians in an annual evaluation of the content and effectiveness of
the policy in improving the academic quality of schools served under Title I. 
 

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6318


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/2

 

 

6. Identify barriers to participation by families, parents, and guardians who are economically
disadvantaged, are identified with a disability, have limited English proficiency, have limited literacy,
or are of any racial or ethnic minority. 
 

7. Identify strategies to support successful school and family interaction, including engagement with
school personnel. 
 

8. Use findings of annual evaluations to design strategies for more effective parent and family
engagement. 
 

9. Involve families, parents, and guardians in the activities of schools served under Title I.

The Board shall adopt and distribute the parent and family engagement policy, which shall be incorporated
into the district's Title I plan and shall be evaluated annually, with parent and family involvement.[1]
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
The Superintendent or his/her designee shall ensure that the district's Title I parent and family
engagement policy, plan and programs comply with the requirements of federal law. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district and its schools with Title I
programs provide opportunities for the informed participation of parents and family members
by providing resources, information and school reports in an understandable and uniform
format, or upon request, in another format.
 
The Title I Coordinator/building principal and/or Title I staff shall provide to families, parents, and
guardians of students participating in Title I programs:

1. Explanation of the reasons supporting their child's selection for the program. 
 

2. Set of objectives to be addressed. 
 

3. Description of the services to be provided. 
 

4. Copy of this policy and the School-Parental and Family Compact.

Parents and family members shall actively carry out their responsibilities in accordance with
this policy and the School-Parent and Family Compact. 
 
The Superintendent or his/her designee shall ensure that information and reports provided to
families, parents, and guardians are in an understandable and uniform format and, to the extent
practicable, in a language the families, parents, and guardians can understand.[1]
 
Guidelines
 
The Superintendent or his/her designee shall develop guidelines for Title I Parent and Family Engagement
(Policy 918AG1) and Title I Parent and Family Engagement School-Parent and Family Compacts
(Policy 918AG2).

Legal 1. 20 U.S.C. 6318

22 PA Code 403.1

Pol. 102

Last Modified by Linda Cherashore on February 28, 2019

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6318
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6318
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/6318
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter403/s403.1.html


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/4

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

Book Policy Manual

Section 900 Community

Title Title I Parent and Family Engagement Guidelines

Code 918AG1

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised December 15, 2017

Families, parents, and guardians of Title I students shall be invited and encouraged to attend an annual
meeting.

The goals and purposes of the Title I program will be explained, including the requirements and
rights for parents to be involved.
Families, parents, and guardians shall be given the opportunity to participate in the planning, review,
and improvement of the program.
The school will educate staff with the assistance of families, parents, and guardians regarding Parent
Family Engagement best practices to strengthen the home school partnership.
The school will coordinate its parent involvement plans to encourage families to fully participate in
the education of their child.

The district will provide opportunities to meet at different times of the day for those who are unable to
attend the annual meeting. At these meetings, families, parents, and guardians shall be provided: 
 
1. Information about programs provided under Title I. 
 
2. Description and explanation of the curriculum the academic assessment used to measure student
progress, and the achievement levels students are expected to meet according to state and District
standards 
 
3. Opportunities to formulate suggestions and to participate, as appropriate, in decisions relating to the
education of their children. 
 
4. Opportunities to plan, review, and improve the school and District Title 1 program. 
 
5. Opportunities to meet with the classroom and Title I teachers to discuss their child's progress. 
 
6. Guidance to assist at home in the education of their child.
 
To ensure the continuous engagement of parents and family members in the joint development
of the Title I Plan and with the school support and improvement process, the district shall:

Establish meaningful, ongoing two-way communication between the district, staff and
parents and family members.
Communicate with parents and family members about the plan and seek their input.
Train personnel on how to collaborate effectively with parents and family members with
diverse backgrounds.
Analyze and share the results of the Title I Parent/Family Survey.
Post school performance data on the district's website.



2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/4

Distribute and discuss the School-Parent and Family Compact.
Host various parent and family nights at each school building with a Title I program.
Establish and support active and engaged Title I parent and family advisory councils.
Actively recruit parents and family members to participate in school review and
improvement planning.
Invite participation of parents and family members at the regular comprehensive planning
committee meetings, Title I budget meetings and school improvement plan meetings.

If the Title I Plan is not satisfactory to parents and family members, the district shall submit
any parent or family member comments with the plan when the school makes the plan
available to the Board. 
 
Building Capacity for Parent and Family Engagement 
 
The district shall provide the coordination, technical assistance, and other support necessary to
assist and build the capacity of all participating schools in planning and implementing effective
parent and family involvement activities to improve academic achievement and school
performance through:

1. Providing assistance to parents and family members in understanding such topics as the
academic standards, state and local academic assessments, the requirements of parent
and family involvement, how to monitor a child's progress and work with teachers to
improve the achievement of their children. 
 

2. Providing material and training to help parents and family members work with their
children to improve academic achievement and to foster parent and family engagement,
such as: 
 

a. Scheduling trainings in different locations on a variety of topics including how to
support their child in school, literacy, school safety, cultural diversity and conflict
resolution. 
 

b. Using technology. 
 

c. Providing information, resources and materials in a user friendly format. 
 

d. Providing, as requested by a parent or family member, other reasonable support for
parent and family engagement activities. 
 

e. Training on how to use the Parent Portal as a tool to monitor grades and
achievement. 
 

3. Educating teachers, specialized instructional support personnel, principals and other
school leaders and staff, on the value and usefulness of contributions of parents and
family members and in how to reach out to, communicate with, and work with them. 
 

4. Engage the HSA/PTO to actively seek out and involve parents and family members. 
 

5. Adopt and implement model approaches to improving parent and family engagement. 
 

6. Engage community-based organizations and businesses in parent and family engagement
activities.

Coordinating Parent and Family Engagement Strategies 
 
The district shall coordinate and integrate Title I parent and family engagement strategies with
other parent and family engagement strategies required by federal, state, and local laws. 
 
Annual Parent and Family Engagement Policy Evaluation 
 
The district shall conduct, with meaningful participation of parents and family members, an
annual evaluation of the content and effectiveness of this policy in improving the academic



2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/4

quality of all district schools with a Title I program.
 
The evaluation shall identify:

1. Barriers to parent and family member participation, with particular attention to those who
are migrants, are economically disadvantaged, have a disability, have limited English
proficiency, have limited literacy, or are of any racial or ethnic minority. 
 

2. The needs of parents and family members to assist with the learning of their children,
including engaging with school personnel and teachers. 
 

3. Strategies to support successful school and parent and family interactions. 
 

The district shall use the findings of the annual evaluation to design evidence-based strategies
for more effective parent and family engagement, and to revise, if necessary, the district’s Title
I Parent and Family Engagement Policy.
 
 
Title I Funds 
 
Unless exempt by law, the district shall reserve at least one percent (1%) of its Title I funds to
assist schools in conducting parent and family engagement activities. Parents and family
members shall be involved in the decisions regarding how the Title I reserved funds are used
for parent and family engagement activities. 
 
Not less than ninety percent (90%) of the reserved funds shall be distributed to district schools
with a Title I program, with priority given to high need schools. The district shall use the Title I
reserved funds to conduct activities and strategies consistent with this policy, including:

Supporting schools in providing professional development for the district and school
personnel regarding parent and family engagement strategies.
Supporting programs that reach parents and family members at home, in the community,
and at school.
Disseminating information on best practices focused on parent and family engagement,
especially best practices for increasing the engagement of economically disadvantaged
parents and family members.
Collaborating with community-based or other organizations or employers with a record of
success in improving and increasing parent and family engagement.
Engaging in any other activities and strategies that the district determines are appropriate
and consistent with this policy.

Documentation of Parent and Family Engagement Practices 
 
Documentation of the implementation of this policy and guidelines shall be maintained.
 
School-Parental and Family Compact
Each school in the district receiving Title I funds shall jointly develop with families, parents, and guardians
of students served in the program a School-Parental and Family Compact outlining their shared
responsibility for improved student achievement in meeting academic standards.
The compact shall: 
 
1. Describe the school's responsibility to provide high-quality curriculum and instruction in a supportive
and effective learning environment, enabling students in the Title I program to meet and families to
understand the district and state academic standards. 
 
2. Indicate the ways in which families, parents, and guardians will be responsible for supporting their
children's learning, such as monitoring attendance, homework completion, and television watching;
volunteering in the classroom; and participating, as appropriate, in decisions related to their child's
education and positive use of extracurricular time. 
 
3. Address the importance of parent-teacher communication on an ongoing basis through, at a minimum,
parent-teacher conferences, frequent reports to families, parents, and guardians and reasonable access to



2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 4/4

 

 

staff. The school will send information to parents and families in a language they can understand to an
extent that it is practical to ensure regular and meaningful two-way communication. 
 
4. Explain how the school will provide materials and training to help parents work with their children to
improve achievement and to foster parent involvement. 
 
See 918AG2 for Title I Parent and Family Engagement School-Parent and Family Compacts.
 

Last Modified by Linda Cherashore on February 28, 2019



2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/1

 
 

 

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

Book Policy Manual

Section 900 Community

Title Title I Parent and Family Engagement School-Parent and Family Compacts

Code 918AG2

Status Second Reading

Title I Parent and Family Engagement School-Parent and Family Compacts for East Bradford ES, East
Goshen ES, Fern Hill ES, Glen Acres ES, and Hillsdale ES can be accessed by clicking on the documents
below.

East Bradford ES 18-19 English.pdf (87 KB) East Bradford ES 18-19 Spanish.pdf (79 KB)

East Goshen ES 18-19 English.pdf (67 KB) East Goshen ES 18-19 Spanish.pdf (85 KB)

Fern Hill ES 18-19 English.pdf (52 KB) Fern Hill ES 18-19 Spanish.pdf (71 KB)

Glen Acres ES 18-19 English.pdf (51 KB) Glen Acres ES 18-19 Spanish.pdf (55 KB)

Hillsdale ES 18-19 English.pdf (45 KB) Hillsdale ES 18-19 Spanish.pdf (47 KB)

Last Modified by Linda Cherashore on February 28, 2019

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/files/B8ANYJ597763/$file/East%20Bradford%20ES%2018-19%20English.pdf
https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/files/B8ANYL597ADF/$file/East%20Bradford%20ES%2018-19%20Spanish.pdf
https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/files/B8ANYN597C0F/$file/East%20Goshen%20ES%2018-19%20English.pdf
https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/files/B8ANYQ597D67/$file/East%20Goshen%20ES%2018-19%20Spanish.pdf
https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/files/B8ANZ35988B2/$file/Fern%20Hill%20ES%2018-19%20English.pdf
https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/files/B8ANZ55988B9/$file/Fern%20Hill%20ES%2018-19%20Spanish.pdf
https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/files/B8ANYT59888B/$file/Glen%20Acres%20ES%2018-19%20English.pdf
https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/files/B8ANYV598891/$file/Glen%20Acres%20ES%2018-19%20Spanish.pdf
https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/files/B8ANYX5988A0/$file/Hillsdale%20ES%2018-19%20English.pdf
https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/files/B8ANYZ5988A4/$file/Hillsdale%20ES%2018-19%20Spanish.pdf


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/7

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

Book Policy Manual

Section 100 Programs

Title Nondiscrimination in School and Classroom Practices (to be renamed
Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-School and Classroom Practices)

Code 103

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised March 26, 2018

Authority
 
 
The Board declares it to be the policy of this district to provide an equal opportunity for all students to
achieve their maximum potential through the programs offered in the schools without discrimination on
the basis of race, color, age, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation, ancestry, national origin, marital
status, pregnancy or handicap/disability.[1][2][3][4][5][6][7][8][9][10][11][12][13][14][15][16][17][18]
[19][28]
 
The district strives to maintain a safe, positive learning environment for all students that is free from
discrimination. Discrimination is inconsistent with the educational and programmatic goals of the district
and is prohibited on school grounds, at school-sponsored activities and on any conveyance providing
providing transportation to or from a school entity or school-sponsored activity.
 
The district shall provide to all students, without discrimination, course offerings, counseling, assistance,
services, employment, athletics and extracurricular activities. The district shall make reasonable
accommodations for identified physical and mental impairments that constitute handicaps and disabilities,
consistent with the requirements of federal and state laws and regulations.
 
The Board encourages students and third parties who believe they or others have been subject to
discrimination to promptly report such incidents to designated employees.
 
The Board directs that verbal and written complaints of discrimination shall be investigated promptly, and
appropriate corrective or preventative action be taken when allegations are substantiated. The Board
directs that when a complaint of discrimination brought pursuant to this policy not proven to be
discriminatory, it should be reviewed for possible action under other Board policies.
 
Confidentiality 
 
Confidentiality of all parties, witnesses, the allegations, the filing of a complaint and the investigation shall
be handled in accordance with the district's legal and investigative obligations.
 
Retaliation
 
The Board prohibits retaliation against any person for making a report of discrimination or participating in
a related investigation or hearing, or opposing practices the person reasonably believes to be
discriminatory. A complaint of retaliation shall be handled in the same manner as a complaint of
discrimination.

http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter12/s12.1.html
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter12/s12.4.html
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter15/chap15toc.html
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter4/s4.4.html
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=1&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=014&chpt=16C
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1961&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=341&chpt=0&sctn=4&subsctn=0
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-38
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/794
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-126
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-I
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-V
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1955&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0222.
https://www.law.cornell.edu/constitution/amendmentxiv
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=1&subsctn=0


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/7

 
Definitions
 
Discriminatory Harassment
 
Harassment by students, employees or third parties on the basis of race, color, age, creed, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, ancestry, national origin, marital status, pregnancy, handicap/disability or for
participation in reports or investigations of alleged discrimination is a form of discrimination and is subject
to this policy. A person who is not necessarily an intended victim or target of such harassment but is
adversely affected by the offensive conduct may file a report of discrimination on his/her own behalf.[20]
[21][22][23][24][25]
 
For purposes of this policy, harassment shall consist of unwelcome conduct such as graphic, written,
electronic, verbal or nonverbal acts including offensive jokes, slurs, epithets and name-calling, ridicule or
mockery, insults or put-downs, offensive objects or pictures, physical assaults or threats, intimidation, or
other conduct that may be harmful or humiliating or interfere with a person’s school or school-related
performance and which relates to an individual’s or group’s race, color, age, creed, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, ancestry, national origin, marital status, pregnancy or handicap/disability when such conduct
is:

1. Sufficiently severe, persistent or pervasive; and 
 

2. A reasonable person in the complainant’s position would find that it creates an intimidating,
threatening or abusive educational environment such that it deprives or adversely interferes with or
limits an individual or group of the ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities or
opportunities offered by a school.

Sexual Harassment
 
Sexual harassment is a form of discrimination on the basis of gender and is subject to this policy. For
purposes of this policy, sexual harassment shall consist of unwelcome sexual advances; requests for
sexual favors; and other inappropriate verbal, nonverbal, written, graphic or physical conduct of a sexual
nature when:

1. Submission to such conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of a student's status
in any educational or other programs offered by a school; or 
 

2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for educational or other program
decisions affecting a student; or 
 

3. Such conduct deprives a student or group of individuals of educational aid, benefits, services or
treatment; or 
 

4. Such conduct is sufficiently severe, persistent or pervasive that a reasonable person in the
complainant’s position would find that it unreasonably interferes with the complainant’s performance
in school or school-related programs, or otherwise creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
school or school-related environment such that it unreasonably interferes with the complainant’s
access to or participation in school or school-related programs.

Federal law declares sexual violence a form of sexual harassment. Sexual violence means physical or
sexual acts perpetrated against a person’s will or where a person is incapable of giving consent due to the
victim's age, victim’s use of drugs or alcohol or victim's intellectual competence. An individual may also be
unable to give consent due to an intellectual or other disability. Sexual violence includes but is not limited
to rape, sexual assault, sexual battery and sexual coercion.
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
In order to maintain a program of nondiscrimination practices that is in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, the Board designates the Director of Human Resources or designee as the district's
Compliance Officer. All nondiscrimination statements notices or information shall include the position,
office address and telephone number, and email address of the Compliance Officer.
 

http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/29/1604.11
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/29/1606.8
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/shguide.html
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-201010.html


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/7

The Compliance Officer shall publish and disseminate this policy and complaint procedure at least annually
to students, parents/guardians, employees and the public to notify them of where and how to initiate
complaints under this policy. 
 
The Compliance Officer is responsible to ensure adequate nondiscrimination procedures are in place, to
recommend new procedures or modifications to procedures and to monitor the implementation of the
district's nondiscrimination procedures in the following areas:

1. Curriculum and Materials - Review of curriculum guides, textbooks and supplemental materials for
discriminatory bias. 
 

2. Training - Provision of training for students and staff to identify and alleviate problems of
discrimination. 
 

3. Resources - Maintain and provide information to staff on resources available to alleged victims in
addition to the school complaint procedure, such as making reports to the police, available
assistance from domestic violence or rape crisis programs and community health resources including
counseling resources. 
 

4. Student Access - Review of programs, activities and practices to ensure that all students have equal
access and are not segregated except when permissible by law or regulation. 
 

5. District Support - Assurance that like aspects of the school program receive like support as to
staffing and compensation, facilities, equipment, and related areas. 
 

6. Student Evaluation - Review of tests, procedures, and guidance and counseling materials for
stereotyping and discrimination. 
 

7. Complaints - Monitor and provide technical assistance to building principals or designee in processing
complaints.

The building principal or designee shall be responsible to promptly complete the following duties upon
receipt of a report of discrimination or retaliation from a student, employee or third party:

1. If the building principal is the subject of the complaint, refer the complainant to the Compliance
Officer to carry out these responsibilities. 
 

2. Inform the complainant or third party about this policy including the right to an investigation of both
oral and written complaints of discrimination. 
 

3. Provide relevant information on resources available in addition to the school complaint procedure,
such as making reports to the police, available assistance from domestic violence or rape crisis
programs and community health resources including counseling resources. 
 

4. Immediately notify the Compliance Officer of the complaint. The Compliance Officer shall assess
whether the investigation should be conducted by the building principal, another district employee,
the Compliance Officer or an attorney and shall promptly assign the investigation to that individual.  
 

5. After consideration of the allegations and in consultation with the Compliance Officer and other
appropriate individuals, promptly implement interim measures as appropriate to protect the
complainant and others as necessary from violation of this policy during the course of the
investigation.

Guidelines
 
Complaint Procedure – Student/Third Party
 
Step 1 – Reporting
 
A student or third party who believes s/he has been subject to conduct by any student, employee, or third
party that constitutes a violation of this policy is encouraged to immediately report the incident to the



2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 4/7

building principal. Any person with knowledge of conduct that may violate this policy, is encouraged to
immediately report the matter to the building principal.
 
A school employee who suspects or is notified that a student has been subject to conduct that constitutes
a violation of this policy shall immediately report the incident to the building principal, as well as properly
making any mandatory police or child protective services reports required by law.[26]
 
If the building principal is the subject of a complaint, the student, third party or employee shall report the
incident directly to the Compliance Officer.
 
The complainant or reporting employee may be encouraged to use the district's report form, available
from the building principal, or Compliance Officer, or to otherwise put the complaint in writing;
however, oral complaints shall be accepted, documented and the procedures of this policy
implemented. The person accepting the verbal or written complaint may provide factual information on the
complaint and the investigative process, the impact of choosing to seek confidentiality and the right to file
criminal charges. In all other respects, the person accepting the complaint shall handle the report
objectively, neutrally and professionally, setting aside personal biases that might favor or disfavor the
complainant or those accused of a violation of this policy.
 
Step 2 – Investigation
 
The investigator shall assess the anticipated scope of the investigation, who needs to be interviewed and
what records may be relevant to the investigation.
 
The investigator shall conduct an adequate, reliable and impartial investigation. The complainant and the
accused shall be provided the opportunity to present witnesses and other evidence during the course of
the investigation.
 
The investigation may consist of individual interviews with the complainant, the accused, and others with
knowledge relative to the allegations. The investigator may also evaluate any other information and
materials relevant to the investigation. The person making the report, parties, parents/guardians and
witnesses shall be informed of the prohibition against retaliation for anyone’s participation in the process
and that conduct believed to be retaliatory should be reported. All individuals providing statements or
other information or participating in the investigation shall be instructed to keep the matter confidential
and to report any concerns about confidentiality to the investigator.
 
If the investigation reveals that the conduct being investigated may involve a violation of criminal law, the
investigator shall promptly inform law enforcement authorities about the allegations in accordance with
existing procedures.[26][27]
 
The obligation to conduct this investigation shall not be negated by the fact that a criminal or child
protective services investigation of the allegations is pending or has been concluded. The investigator
should coordinate with any other ongoing investigations of the allegations, including agreeing to requests
for a short delay in fulfilling the district’s investigative responsibilities during the fact-finding portion of a
criminal or child protective services investigation. Such delays shall not extend beyond the time necessary
to prevent interference with or disruption of the criminal or child protective services investigation. 
 
Step 3 – Investigative Report
 
The investigator shall prepare and submit a written report to the Compliance Officer within twenty (20)
days, of the initial report of alleged discrimination, unless the nature of the allegations, anticipated extent
of the investigation or the availability of witnesses requires the investigator and the Compliance Officer to
establish a different due date. The parties shall be notified of the anticipated date the investigative report
will be completed and of any changes to the anticipated due date during the course of the investigation.
 
The report shall include a summary of the investigation, a determination of whether the complaint has
been substantiated as factual, the information and evaluation that formed the basis for this
determination, whether the conduct violated this policy and of any other violations of law or Board policy
which may warrant further district action, and a recommended disposition of the complaint. An
investigation into discriminatory harassment or sexual harassment shall consider the record as a whole
and the totality of circumstances in determining whether a violation of this policy has occurred,

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=27&sctn=9&subsctn=0


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 5/7

recognizing that persistent and pervasive conduct, when taken together, may be a violation even when the
separate incidents are not severe.
 
The complainant and the accused shall be informed of the outcome of the investigation, including the
recommended disposition within a reasonable time of the submission of the written report. 
 
Step 4 – District Action
 
If the investigation results in a finding that some or all of the allegations of the complaint are proven and
therefore constitute a violation of this policy, the district shall take prompt, corrective action designed to
ensure that such conduct ceases and that no retaliation occurs. The district shall promptly take
appropriate steps to prevent the recurrence of the prohibited conduct and to address the discriminatory
effect the prohibited conduct had on the complainant and the school or school program
environment. District staff shall document the corrective action taken and, where not prohibited by law,
inform the complainant. The Compliance Officer shall follow up by assessing the effectiveness of the
corrective action at reasonable intervals.
 
If an investigation results in a finding that a different policy was violated separately from or in addition to
violations of this policy, or that there are circumstances warranting further action, such matters shall be
addressed at the conclusion of this investigation or through disciplinary or other appropriate referrals
where further evaluation or investigation is necessary.
 
Disciplinary actions shall be consistent with the Code of Student Conduct, Board policies and
administrative regulations, district procedures, applicable collective bargaining agreements, and state and
federal laws.
 
Appeal Procedure

1. If the complainant or the accused is not satisfied with a finding made pursuant to the policy or with
recommended corrective action, s/he may submit a written appeal to the Compliance Officer within
fifteen (15) days. If the Compliance Officer investigated the complaint, such appeal shall be made to
the Superintendent. 
 

2. The individual receiving the appeal shall review the investigation and the investigative report and
may also conduct or designate another person to conduct a reasonable supplemental investigation to
assess the sufficiency and propriety of the prior investigation. 
 

3. The person handling the appeal shall prepare a written response to the appeal within twenty
(20) days. Copies of the response shall be provided to the complainant, the accused and the
investigator who conducted the initial investigation.

Miscellaneous
 
Right to Alternative Complaint Procedure –
 
Nothing in this policy shall deny the right of any individual to pursue other avenues of recourse to address
concerns relating to prohibited harassment including initiating civil action, filing a complaint with outside
agencies or seeking redress under state or federal law.
 
False Charges –
 
Students who knowingly make false charges of harassment or retaliation shall be subject to disciplinary
action, up to and including expulsion.[16][29]



2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 6/7

 

Legal 1. 22 PA Code 12.1

2. 22 PA Code 12.4

3. 22 PA Code 15.1 et seq

4. 22 PA Code 4.4

5. 24 P.S. 1301-A

6. 24 P.S. 1310

7. 24 P.S. 1601-C et seq

8. 24 P.S. 5004

9. 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq

10. 29 U.S.C. 794

11. 42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq

12. 42 U.S.C. 1981 et seq

13. 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq

14. 43 P.S. 951 et seq

15. Pol. 103.1

16. Pol. 218

17. Pol. 247

18. Pol. 249

19. U.S. Const. Amend. XIV, Equal Protection Clause

20. 29 CFR 1604.11

21. 29 CFR 1606.8

22. Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education, 526 U.S. 629 (1999)

23. Franklin v. Gwinnett County Public Schools, 503 U.S. 60 (1992)

24. Office for Civil Rights – Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School
Employees, Other Students or Third Parties (January 2001)

25. Office for Civil Rights - Guidance on Schools' Obligations to Protect Students from Student-
on-Student Harassment on the Basis of Sex; Race, Color and National Origin; and Disability
(Oct. 26, 2010)

26. Pol. 806

27. 18 Pa. C.S.A. 2709

28. 24 P.S. 1301

29. Pol. 233

28 CFR Part 35

28 CFR Part 41

34 CFR Part 100

34 CFR Part 104

34 CFR Part 106

34 CFR Part 110

Pol. 122

Pol. 123

Pol. 701

Last Modified by Linda Cherashore on February 28, 2019

http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter12/s12.1.html
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter12/s12.4.html
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter15/chap15toc.html
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter4/s4.4.html
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=1&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=014&chpt=16C
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1961&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=341&chpt=0&sctn=4&subsctn=0
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-38
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/794
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-126
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-I
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-V
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1955&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0222.
https://www.law.cornell.edu/constitution/amendmentxiv
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/29/1604.11
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/29/1606.8
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/shguide.html
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-201010.html
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=27&sctn=9&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=1&subsctn=0
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/28/part-35
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/28/part-41
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-100
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-104
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-106
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-110


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 7/7

 



2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/1

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

Book Policy Manual

Section 100 Programs

Title Report Form for Complaints of Discrimination in School and Classroom Practices (to be renamed
Report Form for Complaints of Discrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-School and Classroom
Practices

Code 103AG1

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Reviewed January 22, 2018

To open and complete this form, you must right click on the link, select 'Save Link As', and then save the file to your
desktop. You can then print, complete, and submit the form.

103AG1 Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Form.pdf (14 KB)

Last Modified by Linda Cherashore on February 28, 2019

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/files/B9M4LD681FE1/$file/103AG1%20Discrimination%20and%20Harassment%20Complaint%20Form.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 

        No.  103AG1 
    
        ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINE 
        APPROVED: August 1, 2015 
        REVISED: January 22, 2018 

WEST CHESTER AREA 
SCHOOL DISTRICT 

103AG1 Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Form  

Complainant:    

Home Address:  

Phone:    

School Building:  

Date of Alleged Incident(s):    

Alleged discrimination was based on:  

Name of person you believe violated the district’s policy 103: 

 

If the alleged discrimination was directed against another person, identify the other person: 

 
  
Describe the incident(s) as clearly as possible, including any graphic, written, electronic, verbal or 
nonverbal acts (e.g. offensive jokes, slurs, epithets and name-calling, ridicule or mockery, insults, 
offensive objects or pictures, physical assaults, threats, intimidation, or other conduct). Attach 
additional pages if necessary: 
 
 
 
 

When and where incident occurred:    

List any witnesses who were present:  
 

 
This complaint is based on my honest belief that ________________________ has discriminated 
against me and/or harassed me or another person. I certify that the information I have provided in 
this complaint is true, correct and complete to the best of my knowledge. 
 
   

Complainant's Signature  Date 
 
 

  

Received By  Date 
 

 

Page 1 of 1 



2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/3

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

Book Policy Manual

Section 200 Pupils

Title Tobacco (to be renamed Tobacco/Nicotine)

Code 222

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Reviewed December 15, 2014

Purpose
 
The Board recognizes that tobacco, nicotine and nicotine delivery products presents a health and
safety hazard that can have serious consequences for both users and nonusers, and the safety and
environment of the schools.
 
Definition
 
For purposes of this policy, tobacco use: possessing and/or using tobacco in any form, includinges   but
not limited to, in or as a lighted or unlighted cigarette, cigar, cigarillo, little cigar, or pipe; or other
smoking product or material and smokeless tobacco in any form including snuff; chewing tobacco;,
snuff, dip or dissolvable tobacco pieces, smokeless tobacco; possessing or using
tobacco paraphernalia, including but not limited to: lighters; and matches; or e-cigarettes or vape when
used as a mechanism for nicotine delivery.
 
For purposes of this policy, nicotine shall mean a product that contains or consists of nicotine
in a form that can be ingested by chewing, smoking, inhaling or through other means.
 
For purposes of this policy, a nicotine delivery product shall mean a product or device used,
intended for use or designed for the purpose of ingesting nicotine or another substance. This
definition includes, but is not limited to, any device or associated product used for what is
commonly referred to as vaping or juuling.
 
Authority
 
The Board prohibits possession, use or sale of tobacco nicotine and nicotine delivery products by
students at any time in a school building and on any property, buses, vans, and vehicles that are owned,
leased, or controlled by the school district.[1][2][10]
 
The Board also prohibits possession, use, or sale of tobacco nicotine and nicotine delivery
products by students at school-sponsored activities that are held off school property.
 
In the case of a student with a disability, including a student for whom an evaluation is pending, the
district shall take all steps required to comply with state and federal laws and regulations, the procedures
set forth in the memorandum of understanding with local law enforcement and Board policies.[3][4][5][6]
[7][8]
 
Delegation of Responsibility

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2000&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0128.
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/7183
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=63&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-33


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/3

 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify students, parents/guardians, and staff about the
districtBoard's tobacco/nicotine policy by publishing such policy information in the student
handbook(s), Code of Student Conduct/Disciplinary Action Schedule, parent(al) newsletters,
posters, posted notices, district website, and/or by other efficient methods such as posted
notices, signs and on the district website.
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop administrative regulations to implement this policy.
 
Guidelines
 
Students found in violation of this policy shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action.
 
Reporting
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify the parent/guardian of any student directly
involved in an incident involving possession, use or sale of tobacco, nicotine or nicotine
delivery products immediately, as soon as practicable. The Superintendent or designee shall
inform the parent/guardian whether or not the local police department that has jurisdiction
over the school property has been or may be notified of the incident. The Superintendent or
designee shall document attempts made to reach the parent/guardian.
 
In accordance with state law, tThe Superintendent shall annually, by July 31, report all incidents of
possession, use or sale of tobacco, nicotine or nicotine delivery products by students to the Office for
Safe Schools on the required form.[8][9]
 
Additional Provisions - Tobacco Only
 
The Superintendent or designee may report incidents of possession, use or sale of tobacco by
students on school property, at any school-sponsored activity or on a conveyance providing
transportation to or from a school or school-sponsored activity to the school police, school
resource officer (SRO) or to the local police department that has jurisdiction over the school’s
property, in accordance with state law and regulations, the procedures set forth in the
memorandum of understanding with local law enforcement and Board policies
 
A student convicted of possessing or using tobacco in violation of this policy may be fined up to fifty
dollars ($50) plus court costs, and attorney’s fees, or admitted by the court to alternative adjudication in
lieu of imposition of a fine.[11]
 
Students found in violation of this policy shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action.
 
Education about the hazards of tobacco and smoking will begin in the elementary schools and continue
through the middle and high school levels.

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=63&sctn=6&subsctn=1


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/3

 

 

Legal 1. 35 P.S. 1223.5

2. 20 U.S.C. 7183

3. 22 PA Code 10.23

4. 20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq

5. Pol. 103.1

6. Pol. 113.1

7. Pol. 113.2

8. Pol. 805.1

9. 24 P.S. 1303-A

10. 18 Pa. C.S.A. 6305

11. 18 Pa. C.S.A. 6306.1

20 U.S.C. 7114

20 U.S.C. 7181 et seq

22 PA Code 10.2

22 PA Code 10.22

22 PA Code 10.25

22 PA Code 403.1

24 P.S. 510

24 P.S. 1302.1-A

34 CFR Part 300

Pol. 000

Last Modified by Linda Cherashore on February 28, 2019

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2000&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0128.
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/7183
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter10/s10.23.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-33
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=63&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=63&sctn=6&subsctn=1
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/7114
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-70/subchapter-IV/part-C
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter10/s10.22.html
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter10/s10.25.html
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter403/s403.1.html
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=2&subsctn=1
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-300


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/6

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

Book Policy Manual

Section 200 Pupils

Title Copy of Hazing

Code 247

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised July 25, 2016

Purpose
 
The purpose of this policy is to maintain a safe, positive environment for students and staff that is free
from hazing. Hazing activities of any type are inconsistent with the educational goals of the district and
are prohibited at all times.
 
Definitions
 
For purposes of this policy hazing is defined as any action or situation which recklessly or intentionally
endangers the mental or physical health or safety of a person or which willfully destroys or removes public
or private property for the purpose of initiation or admission into or affiliation with, or as a condition
for continued membership in any organization. The term shall include, but not be limited to, any brutality
of a physical nature, such as whipping, beating, branding, forced calisthenics, exposure to the elements,
forced consumption of any food, liquor, drug or other substance, or any other forced physical activity
which could adversely affect the physical health and safety of an individual, and shall include any activity
which would subject the individual to extreme mental stress, such as sleep deprivation, forced exclusion
from social contact, forced conduct which could result in extreme embarrassment, or any other forced
activity which could adversely affect the mental health or dignity of the individual, or any willful
destruction or removal of public or private property. For purposes of this definition, any activity as
described in the definition upon which the initiation or admission into or affiliation with or continued
membership in an organization directly or indirectly conditions shall be presumed to be forced activity, the
willingness of an individual to participate in such activity notwithstanding.[1]
 
School setting shall include, but not be limited to, the school, school grounds, school vehicles or district
provided transportation, bus stops, and any activity sponsored, supervised or sanctioned by the district.
School setting shall include nondistrict property, facilities, or activities where hazing is conducted by
Board recognized organizations.
 
Hazing occurs when a person intentionally, knowingly or recklessly, for the purpose of initiating,
admitting or affiliating a student with an organization, or for the purpose of continuing or
enhancing membership or status in an organization, causes, coerces or forces a student to do
any of the following:[1]

1. Violate federal or state criminal law.

2. Consume any food, liquid, alcoholic liquid, drug or other substance which subjects the
student to a risk of emotional or physical harm.

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2016&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0031.
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=28&sctn=2&subsctn=0


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/6

3. Endure brutality of a physical nature, including whipping, beating, branding, calisthenics or
exposure to the elements.

4. Endure brutality of a mental nature, including activity adversely affecting the mental health
or dignity of the individual, sleep deprivation, exclusion from social contact or conduct that could
result in extreme embarrassment.

5. Endure brutality of a sexual nature.

6. Endure any other activity that creates a reasonable likelihood of bodily injury to the
student.

Aggravated hazing occurs when a person commits an act of hazing that results in serious
bodily injury or death to the student and:[2]

1. The person acts with reckless indifference to the health and safety of the student; or

2. The person causes, coerces or forces the consumption of an alcoholic liquid or drug by the
student.

Organizational hazing occurs when an organization intentionally, knowingly or recklessly
promotes or facilitates hazing or aggravated hazing.[3][4]
 
Any activity, as described above, shall be deemed a violation of this policy regardless of
whether:[5]

1. The consent of the student was sought or obtained, or

2. The conduct was sanctioned or approved by the school or organization.

Student activity or organization means any activity, society, corps, team, club or service, social or
similar group, operating under the sanction of or recognized as an organization by the district, whose
members are primarily students or alumni of the organization.[6][7]
 
For purposes of this policy, bodily injury shall mean impairment of physical condition or
substantial pain.[8]
 
For purposes of this policy, serious bodily injury shall mean bodily injury which creates a
substantial risk of death or which causes serious, permanent disfigurement, or protracted loss
or impairment of the function of any bodily member or organ.[8]
 
Authority
 
The Board does not condone any form of prohibits hazing in connection with any student activity or
organization regardless of whether the conduct occurs on or off school property or outside of school hours.
[4][5][7][9][10]the school setting by any person.
 
No student, parent/guardian, coach, sponsor, volunteer, or district employee shall plan, direct,
encourage, assist or engage in, condone or ignore any form of hazing activity. 
 
The board directs that no administrator, coach, sponsor, volunteer, or district employee shall permit,
condone or tolerate any for of hazing.
 
The district will investigate all complaints of hazing and will administer appropriate discipline to any
individual who violates this policy.
 
The Board encourages students who believe they, or others, have been subjected to hazing to promptly
report such incidents to the building principal or designee.
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
District administrators shall investigate promptly all complaints of hazing and administer appropriate
discipline to any individual who violates this policy.

https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=28&sctn=3&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=28&sctn=4&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=28&sctn=8&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=28&sctn=6&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=28&sctn=1&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=11&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=23&sctn=1&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=23&sctn=1&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=28&sctn=8&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=28&sctn=6&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=11&subsctn=0


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/6

 
Students, administrators, parents/guardians, coaches, sponsors, volunteers, parents/guardians, and
district employees shall be alert to incidents of hazing and shall report such conduct to the building
principal or designee for investigation.
 
The district shall annually provide copies of this policy to all athletic coaches. This policy shall be posted on
the district’s website.[6]
 
Discrimination/Discriminatory Harassment
 
Every report of alleged hazing that can be interpreted at the outset to fall within the provisions
of policies addressing potential violations of laws against discrimination and discriminatory
harassment shall be handled as a joint, concurrent investigation into all allegations and
coordinated with the full participation of the Compliance Officer. If, in the course of a hazing
investigation, potential issues of discrimination or discriminatory harassment are identified,
the Compliance Officer shall be promptly notified, and the investigation shall be conducted
jointly and concurrently to address the issues of alleged discrimination as well as the incidents
of alleged hazing.[11][12]
 
Guidelines
 
In addition to posting this policy on the district’s publicly accessible website, the district shall
inform students, parents/guardians, sponsors, volunteers and district employees of the
district’s policy prohibiting hazing, including district rules, penalties for violations of the policy,
and the program established by the district for enforcement of the policy by means of
publication in handbooks and verbal instructions by the coach or sponsor at the start of the
season or program. [4]
 
This policy, along with other applicable district policies, procedures and Codes of Conduct, shall
be provided to all school athletic coaches and all sponsors and volunteers affiliated with a
student activity or organization, prior to coaching an athletic activity or serving as a
responsible adult supervising, advising, assisting or otherwise participating in a student
activity or organization together with a notice that they are expected to read and abide by the
policies, procedures and Codes of Conduct.[7]
 
Complaint Procedure
 
When a A student who believes that s/he has been subject to hazing, is encouraged to the student shall
promptly report the incident, orally or in writing, to the building principal or designee.
 
Students are encouraged to use the district’s report form, available from the building principal,
or to put the complaint in writing; however, oral complaints shall be accepted and
documented. 
 
The Board directs that verbal and written complaints of hazing shall be provided to the building
principal or designee, who shall promptly notify the Superintendent or designee of the
allegations and determine who shall conduct the investigation. Allegations of hazing shall be
investigated promptly, and appropriate corrective or preventative action be taken when
allegations are substantiated. The Board directs that any complaint of hazing brought pursuant
to this policy shall also be reviewed for conduct which may not be proven to be hazing under
this policy but merits review and possible action under other Board policies.
 
Interim Measures/Police
 
Upon receipt of a complaint of hazing, the building principal or designee, in consultation with
the Superintendent or designee, shall determine what, if any interim measures should be put in
place to protect students from further hazing, bullying, discrimination or retaliatory conduct
related to the alleged incident and report. Such interim measures may include, but not be
limited to, the suspension of an adult who is involved, the separation of alleged victims and
perpetrators, and the determination of what the complaining student needs or wants through
questioning.

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2016&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0031.
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=28&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=11&subsctn=0


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 4/6

 
Those receiving the initial report and conducting or overseeing the investigation will assess
whether the complaint, if proven, would constitute hazing, aggravated hazing or organizational
hazing and shall report it to the police consistent with district practice and, as appropriate,
consult with legal counsel about whether to report the matter to the police at every stage of
the proceeding. The decision to report a matter to the police should not involve an analysis by
district personnel of whether safe harbor provisions might apply to the person being reported,
but information on the facts can be shared with the police in this regard.[13]
 
Referral To Law Enforcement and Safe Schools Reporting Requirements –
 
For purposes of reporting hazing incidents to law enforcement in accordance with Safe Schools
Act reporting, the term incident shall mean an instance involving an act of violence; the
possession of a weapon; the possession, use, or sale of a controlled substance or drug
paraphernalia as defined in the Pennsylvania Controlled Substance, Drug, Device and Cosmetic
Act; the possession, use, or sale of alcohol or tobacco; or conduct that constitutes an offense
listed under the Safe Schools Act.[14][15][16]
 
The Superintendent or designee shall immediately report required incidents and may report
discretionary incidents, as defined in the Safe Schools Act, committed by students on school
property, at any school-sponsored activity or on a conveyance providing transportation to or
from a school or school-sponsored activity to the local police department that has jurisdiction
over the school’s property, in accordance with state law and regulations, the procedures set
forth in the memorandum of understanding with local law enforcement and Board policies.[14]
[15][17][18][19][20]
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify the parent/guardian of any student directly
involved in a defined incident as a victim or suspect immediately, as soon as practicable. The
Superintendent or designee shall inform the parent/guardian whether or not the local police
department that has jurisdiction over the school property has been or may be notified of the
incident. The Superintendent or designee shall document attempts made to reach the
parent/guardian.[14][20][21]
 
In accordance with state law, the Superintendent shall annually, by July 31, report all new
incidents to the Office for Safe Schools on the required form.[15][20]
 
Confidentiality
 
Confidentiality of all parties, witnesses, the allegations, the filing of a complaint and the
investigation shall be handled in accordance with this policy and the district’s legal and
investigative obligations.
 
Retaliation
Reprisal or retaliation relating to reports of hazing or participation in an investigation of
allegations of hazing is prohibited and shall be subject to disciplinary action. 
 
Consequences for Violations 
 
Safe Harbor –
 
An individual needing medical attention or seeking medical attention for another shall not be
subject to criminal prosecution if s/he complies with the requirements under law, subject to
the limitations set forth in law.[13]
 
Students – 
 
If the investigation results in a substantiated finding of hazing, the investigator shall
recommend appropriate disciplinary action up to and including expulsion, as circumstances
warrant, in accordance with the Code of Student Conduct. The student may also be subject to
disciplinary action by the coach or sponsor, up to and including removal from the activity or
organization. The fact of whether a student qualified for and received safe harbor under a

https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=28&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1972&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=64&chpt=0&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter10/s10.21.html
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter10/s10.22.html
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=2&subsctn=1
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter10/s10.25.html
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=28&sctn=10&subsctn=0


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 5/6

criminal investigation shall be considered in assigning discipline.[4][7][13][22][23] 
 
Nonstudent Violators/Organizational Hazing -
 
If the investigation results in a substantiated finding that a coach, sponsor, or volunteer
affiliated with the student activity or organization engaged in, condoned or ignored any
violation of this policy, s/he shall be disciplined in accordance with Board policy and applicable
laws and regulations. Discipline could include, but is not limited to, dismissal from the position
as coach, sponsor, or volunteer, and/or dismissal from district employment.[24]
 
If an organization is found to have engaged in organizational hazing, it shall be subject to the
imposition of fines and other appropriate penalties. Penalties may include rescission of
permission for that organization to operate on school property or to otherwise operate under
the sanction or recognition of the district.
 
Criminal Prosecution –
 
Any person or organization that causes or participates in hazing may also be subject to criminal
prosecution.[4]
 
 
The principal shall conduct a timely, impartial, thorough, and comprehensive investigation of the alleged
hazing.
 
The principal shall prepare a written report summarizing the investigation and recommending disposition
of the complaint. The complainant and the accused shall be informed of the outcome of the investigation,
including the recommended disposition of the complaint.
 
If the investigation results in a substantiated finding of hazing, the principal shall recommend appropriate
disciplinary action, as circumstances warrant, in accordance with the Code of Student Conduct/Disciplinary
Action Schedule (see Policy 218-Student Discipline). Additionally, the student may be subject to
disciplinary action by the coach or sponsor, up to and including removal from the activity.[3][6][7][8]
 
If the investigation results in a substantiated finding that a coach or sponsor affiliated with the activity
planned, directed, encouraged, assisted, condoned, or ignored any form of hazing, s/he will be disciplined
appropriately. Discipline could include dismissal from the position as coach or sponsor and/or discipline up
to and including termination for district employees.[9]
 
Any disciplinary action imposed by the district shall be in addition to any penalty that may be imposed
under federal, state or local law.
 
The district shall document the corrective action taken and, where not prohibited by law, inform the
complainant.
 
Retaliation against students, staff or other persons who report hazing pursuant to this policy or who
participate in any related proceedings is prohibited. The Board deems retaliatory acts as harmful and shall
take appropriate action against students who retaliate against any student, staff or other person who
reports alleged hazing or participates in related proceedings. Such action may include discipline up to and
including expulsion.

https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=28&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=11&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=28&sctn=10&subsctn=0
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=28&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=11&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2016&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0031.


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 6/6

 

 

Legal 1. 24 P.S. 5352

2. 24 P.S. 510

3. 24 P.S. 511

4. Pol. 122

5. Pol. 123

6. 24 P.S. 5354

7. Pol. 218

8. Pol. 233

9. Pol. 317

24 P.S. 5351 et seq

Pol. 916

Last Modified by Linda Cherashore on February 28, 2019

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2016&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0031.
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=11&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2016&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0031.
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2016&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0031.


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/3

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

Book Policy Manual

Section 200 Pupils

Title Bullying/Cyberbullying

Code 249

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised June 25, 2018

Last Reviewed June 22, 2015

Purpose
 
The district recognizes that bullying and intimidation have a negative effect on the learning environment.
Students who are intimidated and fearful cannot give their education the single-minded attention needed
for success. Bullying can also lead to more serious violence. Every student has a right to an education and
to be safe in and around school.
 
Definitions
 
Bullying means an intentional electronic, written, verbal, or physical act or series of acts directed at
another student or students, which occurs in a school setting and/or outside a school setting, that is
severe, persistent, or pervasive and has the effect of doing any of the following: (1) substantially
interfering with a student’s education; (2) creating a threatening environment; or (3) substantially
disrupting the orderly operation of the school.[1]
 
Examples of acts or series of acts that may constitute bullying if it meets the preceding definition include,
but are not limited to: physical intimidation or assault; extortion; oral or written threats; teasing;
putdowns; name calling; threatening looks, gestures or actions; cruel rumors; false accusations; and
social isolation.
 
Bullying behavior accomplished through electronic mediums, including but not limited to, computers,
Internet, instant messaging, email, and social networking sites shall be subject to this policy.
 
Bullying, as defined in this policy, includes cyberbullying.
 
School setting means in the school, on school grounds, in school vehicles, at a designated bus stop, or at
any activity sponsored, supervised, or sanctioned by the school.[1]
 
Authority
 
The Board prohibits all forms of bullying by district students.[1]
 
The Board encourages students who have been bullied to promptly report such incidents to the building
principal or designee.
 
The Board directs that complaints of bullying shall be investigated promptly, and corrective action shall be
taken when allegations are verified. The Board directs that any complaint of bullying brought

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=1


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/3

pursuant to this policy shall also be reviewed for conduct which may not be proven to be
bullying under this policy but merits review and possible action under other Board policies.
 
Discrimination/Discriminatory Harassment
 
Every report of alleged bullying that can be interpreted at the outset to fall within the
provisions of policies addressing potential violations of laws against discrimination and
discriminatory harassment shall be handled as a joint, concurrent investigation into all
allegations and coordinated with the full participation of the Compliance Officer. If, in the
course of a bullying investigation, potential issues of discrimination or discriminatory
harassment are identified, the Compliance Officer shall be promptly notified, and the
investigation shall be conducted jointly and concurrently to address the issues of alleged
discrimination as well as the incidents of alleged bullying.
 
Confidentiality
 
Confidentiality of all parties, witnesses, the allegations, the filing of a complaint and the
investigation shall be handled in accordance with this policy and the district’s legal and
investigative obligations.
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
Each student shall be responsible to respect the rights of others and to ensure an atmosphere free from
bullying.
 
The Superintendent or his/her designee, in cooperation with other appropriate administrators, shall review
this policy every three (3) years and recommend necessary revisions to the Board.[1]
 
District administration shall annually provide the information required by law on the Safe School Report, or
the current required documentation.[1]
 
Guidelines
 
School Personnel Intervention
 
The district requires school personnel who observe or become aware of an act or series of acts that s/he
believes to constitute bullying to take immediate, appropriate steps to intervene, unless such intervention
would be a threat to the school personnel’s safety. If the school personnel are unable to intervene, believe
that his/her intervention has not resolved the matter, or the objectionable action persists, s/he shall report
the bullying to the building principal or his/her designee for further investigation.
 
Reporting by Students or Parents/Guardians
 
The district expects students and parents/guardians who observe or become aware of an act or series of
acts that they believe to constitute bullying to report it to the building principal or his/her designee for
further investigation.
 
Investigation Procedures
 
Upon learning of a bullying incident, the principal or his/her designee shall contact the parents/guardians
of both the alleged aggressor and the alleged subject of the aggression, interview both students, and
thoroughly investigate. This investigation may include, but is not limited to: interviews with students,
parents/guardians, and school personnel; review of school records; and identification of parental, family,
and environmental issues.
 
All employees shall cooperate with any investigation conducted under this policy or by any local, state, or
federal agency or the Board.
 
Consequences/Intervention
 
Students found to have bullied others shall be subject to the consequences set forth in applicable Board
policy, consistent with the Code of Student Conduct/Disciplinary Action Schedule. Students may also be

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=1


2/28/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/3

 

 

subject to counseling.[1][2][3]
 
Depending on the severity of the incident, the principal or his/her designee may also take appropriate
steps to ensure student safety. These may include, but are not limited to: implementing a safety plan;
separating and supervising the students involved; providing staff support for students as necessary;
reporting incidents to law enforcement, if appropriate, in the principal’s or designee’s sole discretion; and
developing a supervision plan with parents/guardians.
 
The district may elect to develop and implement bullying prevention, intervention, or educational
programs.[1][4][5]
 
Retaliation and False Charges
 
Retaliation against students, school personnel, or other persons who report bullying pursuant to this policy
or who participate in any related proceeding is prohibited. The Board deems retaliatory acts harmful and
shall take appropriate action against students who retaliate against any student, school personnel, or
other person who reports alleged bullying or participates in related proceedings. Such action may include
discipline up to and including expulsion.
 
Students who knowingly make false charges of bullying or retaliation shall be subject to disciplinary action
up to and including expulsion.
 
Notice Requirements
 
This policy shall be made available on the district’s publicly accessible website. It shall be posted in each
district classroom and in a prominent location within each school building where such notices are usually
posted. It shall be reviewed with students at least once every school year.[1]

Legal 1. 24 P.S. 1303.1-A

2. Pol. 218

3. Pol. 233

4. Pol. 236

5. 24 P.S. 1302-A

22 PA Code 12.3

Pol. 000

Pol. 103

Last Modified by Linda Cherashore on February 28, 2019

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter12/s12.3.html


Pupil Services Meeting Minutes 
March 11, 2019 

Pupil Services Committee Meeting 

Attended: 

Attending Committee Members:  Sue Tiernan, Randell Spackman, Chris Tabakin  

Other Board Members: Karen Herrmann, Kate Shaw, Chris McCune, Brian Gallen 

Administration: Tammi Florio, Robert Sokolowski, Sara Missett, Michael Wagman 
Ms. Tiernan opened the meeting at 6:32 pm.  

 
Items listed on the Pupil Services Committee Regular Agenda of February 25, 2019: 

1. February 25, 2019 Pupil Services Committee Minutes 
2. Vaping Presentation 

    
A. Actions and Outcomes: 

 
   

B. Items to be placed on upcoming Board Agenda:   
1. Approval of  February 25, 2019  Pupil Services Committee Minutes vote: 3-0 

 
 

C. Items to be placed on the Consent Agenda: 

1.  

 

D. Items to be discussed at a later date:  

None 

 

The meeting ended at 7:06 pm. 

 

Next Meeting:  Monday, April 8, 2019 – 6:30 pm 



Pupil Services Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2019 

Pupil Services Committee Meeting 

Attended: 

Attending Committee Members:  Joyce Chester, Sue Tiernan, Randell Spackman 

Other Board Members: Karen Herrmann, Kate Shaw 

Administration: Tammi Florio, Robert Sokolowski, Sara Missett, Michael Wagman 
Ms. Chester opened the meeting at 5:34 pm.  

 
Items listed on the Pupil Services Committee Regular Agenda of February 25, 2019: 

1. January 14, 2019 Pupil Services Committee Minutes 
2. Translator Contract  

3. Melton Center Lease 

    
A. Actions and Outcomes: 

 
   

B. Items to be placed on upcoming Board Agenda:   
1. Approval of  January 14, 2019  Pupil Services Committee Minutes vote: 3-0 
2. Approval of the Translator Contract vote: 3-0 

3. Approval of the Melton Center Lease vote: 3-0 

 
C. Items to be placed on the Consent Agenda: 

1. Approval of Revisions  to Policy 103.1 Nondiscrimination-Qualified Students with Disabilities Second Reading 

2. Approval of Policy 103.1 AG1 Nondiscrimination-Qualified Students with Disabilities Second Reading 

3. Approval of Policy 103.1 AG2 Report Form for Complaints of Discrimination-Qualified Students with Disabilities Second 

Reading 

 

D. Items to be discussed at a later date:  

None 

 

The meeting ended at 5:44 pm. 

 

Next Meeting:  Monday, March 11, 2019 – 6:30 pm 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
School Board Meeting 

March 25, 2019 
 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 

ACTION ITEMS 

 

Approval of Revisions and Name Change – Board Policy 104 – Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory 
Harassment-Employment Practices (formerly known as Nondiscrimination in Employment 
Practices), Second Reading 
Approval is requested of Revisions and Name Change – Board Policy 104-
Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-Employment Practices (formerly known as 
Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices), Second Reading 
 
I so move. 

 

Approval of Revisions and Name Change – Administrative Guideline 104AG1 Report Form for 
Complaints of Discrimination/Discriminatory Harassment – Employment Practices (formerly known 
as Report Form for Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices), Second Reading 
Approval is requested of Revisions and Name Change - Administrative Guideline 104AG1 Report Form 
for Complaints of Discrimination/Discriminatory Harassment – Employment Practices (formerly known 
as Report Form for Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices), Second Reading 
 
I so move. 

 

Approval of Revisions and Name Change – Board Policy 323 Tobacco/Nicotine (formerly known as 
Tobacco), Second Reading 
Approval is requested of Revisions and Name Change – Board Policy 323 Tobacco/Nicotine (formerly 
known as Tobacco), Second Reading 
 
I so move. 
 

Approval of a Memorandum of Agreement between the Board of Education of the West Chester 
Area School District and the West Chester Area Education Association revising the Collective 
Bargaining Agreement with a term of July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2022 to include an Employer HSA 
contribution of $500 for each year employees are enrolled in the IBC HDDP HD1-HC-1 core plan. 
Approval is requested of a Memorandum of Agreement between the Board of Education of the West 
Chester Area School District and the West Chester Area Education Association revising the Collective 
Bargaining Agreement with a term of July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2022 to include an Employer HSA 
contribution of $500 for each year employees are enrolled in the IBC HDDP HD1-HC-1 core plan. 
 
I so move. 
 



3/5/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/6

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

Book Policy Manual

Section 100 Programs

Title Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices (to be renamed
Nondiscrimination/Discriminatory Harrassment-Employment Practices)

Code 104

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised January 22, 2018

Authority
 
The Board declares it to be the policy of this district to provide to all persons equal access to all
categories of employment in this district, regardless of race, color, age, creed, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, ancestry, national origin, marital status, genetic
information, pregnancy, or handicap/disability. The district shall make reasonable accommodations
for identified physical and mental impairments that constitute disabilities, consistent with the
requirements of federal and state laws and regulations.[1][2][3][4][5][6][7][8][9][10][11][12][13]
 
The Board encourages employees and third parties who believe they or others have been subject to
discrimination to promptly report such incidents to designated employees.
 
The Board directs that verbal and written complaints of discrimination shall be investigated promptly,
and appropriate corrective action be taken when allegations are substantiated. The Board directs that
when a any complaint of discrimination brought pursuant to this policy is not proven to be
discriminatory under this policy, it should be reviewed for possible action under other Board policies.
shall also be reviewed for conduct which may not be proven discriminatory under this
policy but merits review and possible action under other Board policies. [12][13][14]
 
Confidentiality
 
 
Confidentiality of all parties, witnesses, the allegations, the filing of a complaint, and the
investigation shall be handled in accordance with this policy and the district's legal and investigative
obligations.
 
Retaliation
 
The Board prohibits retaliation against any persons for making a report of discrimination or
participating in a related investigation or hearing, or opposing practices the persons reasonably
believes to be discriminatory. A complaint of retaliation shall be handled in the same manner as a
complaint of discrimination.
 
Definitions
 

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-38
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/206
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/chapter-14
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/794
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-126
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-I
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-VI
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21F
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1959&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=694&chpt=0&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1955&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0222.
https://www.law.cornell.edu/constitution/amendmentxiv


3/5/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/6

Discriminatory Harassment
 
Harassment by students, employees, or third parties on the basis of race, color, age, creed, religion,
sex, sexual orientation, ancestry, national origin, marital status, genetic information, pregnancy, or
handicap/disability is a form of discrimination and is subject to this policy.  A pPersons who is not
necessarily an intended victim or target of such harassment but are is  adversely affected by the
offensive conduct may file a report of discrimination on his/her own behalf. [8][14][15][16][17][18]
[19]
 
For purposes of this policy, harassment shall consist of unwelcome conduct such as graphic,
written, electronic, verbal or nonverbal acts including offensive jokes, slurs, epithets and name-
calling, ridicule or mockery, insults or put-downs, offensive objects or pictures, physical assaults or
threats, intimidation, or other conduct that may be harmful or humiliating or interfere with a person’s
work performance and which relates to an individual's or group’s race, color, age, creed, religion,
sex, sexual orientation, ancestry, national origin, marital status, genetic information, pregnancy, or
handicap/disability when such conduct is:

1. Sufficiently severe, persistent, or pervasive; and 
 

2. A reasonable person in the complainant’s position would find that it creates an intimidating,
threatening, or abusive work environment such that it deprives or adversely interferes with or
limits an individual or group of the ability to participate in or benefit from the services,
activities, or opportunities offered by a school.

For purposes of this policy, sexual harassment shall consist of unwelcome sexual advances;
requests for sexual favors; and other inappropriate verbal, nonverbal, written, electronic, graphic, or
physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

1. Submission to such conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an employee’s
status; or 
 

2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for employment-related
decisions affecting an employee; or 
 

3. Such conduct is sufficiently severe, persistent, or pervasive that a reasonable person in the
complainant’s position would find that it unreasonably interferes with the complainant’s
performance at work or otherwise creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working
environment such that it alters the complainant’s working conditions.

Delegation of Responsibility
 
In order to maintain a program of nondiscrimination practices that is in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, the Board designates the Director of Human Resources or designee as the
district's Compliance Officer. All nondiscrimination notices or information shall include the position,
office address, telephone number, and email address of the Compliance Officer.
 
The Compliance Officer shall publish and disseminate this policy and complaint procedure at least
annually to students, parents/guardians, employees, and the public to notify them of where and how
to initiate complaints under this policy.
 
The Compliance Officer shall be responsible to ensure adequate nondiscrimination procedures are in
place, to recommend new procedures or modifications to procedures, and to monitor the
implementation of nondiscrimination procedures in the following areas: review, training, resources,
and complaints.

1. Review - The compliance officer shall be responsible for the r Review of personnel practices and
actions for discriminatory bias and compliance with laws against discrimination to include
monitoring and recommending corrective measures when appropriate to written position
qualifications, job descriptions, and essential job functions; recruitment materials and

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21F
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/29/1604.11
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/29/1606.8
https://www.eeoc.gov/policy/docs/harris.html
https://www.eeoc.gov/policy/docs/harassment.html
https://www.eeoc.gov/policy/docs/currentissues.html


3/5/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/6

practices; procedures for screening applicants; application and interviewing practices
for hiring and promotions; district designed performance evaluations; review of planned
employee demotions, non-renewal of contracts, and proposed employee disciplinary actions up
to and including terminations. 
 

2. Training - The compliance officer shall be responsible for providing pProvisions of training for
supervisors and staff to prevent, identify, and alleviate problems of employment discrimination.
 

3. Resources - The compliance office shall be responsible to m Maintain and provide information
to staff on resources available to alleged victims in addition to the school complaint procedure
such as making reports to the police, available assistance from domestic violence or rape crisis
programs, and community health resources including counseling resources.  
 

4. Complaints - The compliance officer shall be responsible to m Monitor and provide technical
assistance to building principals or designees in processing complaints.

The building principal or designee  supervisor shall be responsible to promptly complete the
following duties upon receipt of a report of discrimination or retaliation from employees or third
parties:

1. Refer the complainant to the Compliance Officer to carry out these responsibilities, if the
building principal is the subject of the complaint.   If the building principal or supervisor is
the subject of the complaint, refer the complainant to the Compliance Officer to carry
out these responsibilities.  
 

2. Inform the employee or third party about this policy including the right to an investigation of
both verbal and written complaints of discrimination. 
 

3. Provide relevant information on resources available in addition to the school complaint
procedure such as making reports to the police, available assistance from domestic violence
and rape crisis programs, and community health resources including counseling resources. 
 

4. Immediately  nNotify the Compliance Officer of the complaint immediately. The Compliance
Officer shall assess whether the investigation should be conducted by the building principal,
another employee, the Compliance Officer, or an attorney and shall promptly assign the
investigation to that individual. 
 

5. After consideration of the allegations and in consultation with the Compliance Officer
and other appropriate individuals, pPromptly implement interim measures as appropriate
to protect the complainant and others as necessary from violation of this policy during the
course of the investigation. after careful considerations of the allegations and in consultation
with the Compliance Officer and other appropriate individuals.

Guidelines
 
Complaint Procedure – Employee/Third Party
 
Step 1 – Reporting
 
An employee or third party who believes s/he has been subject to conduct by any student, employee,
or third party that constitutes a violation of this policy is encouraged to immediately report the
incident  matter to the building principal or supervisor. Any person with knowledge of conduct
which may violate this policy is encouraged to immediately report the matter to the building principal
or supervisor.
 
If the building principal or supervisor is the subject of a complaint, the employee or third party
shall report the incident directly to the Compliance Officer. The complainant or reporting employee
may be encouraged to use the district's report form available from the building
principal, supervisor or Compliance Officer, or to otherwise put the complaint in writing; however,



3/5/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 4/6

oral complaints shall be accepted, first documented before acceptance and the procedures of this
policy implemented. The person accepting the verbal or written complaint may provide factual
information on the complaint and the investigative process, the impact of choosing to seek
confidentiality, and the right to file criminal charges. In all other respects, the person accepting the
complaint shall handle the report objectively, neutrally, and professionally, setting aside personal
biases that might favor or disfavor the complainant or those accused of a violation of this policy.
 
Step 2 – Investigation
 
The investigator shall assess the anticipated scope of the investigation, who needs to be interviewed,
and what records may be relevant to the investigation.  The Compliance Officer shall ensure that
the individual assigned to investigate the complaint has an appropriate understanding of
the relevant laws pertaining to discrimination issues and this policy and how to conduct
investigations.
 
The investigator shall conduct an adequate, reliable, and impartial investigation. The complainant
and the accused shall be provided the opportunity to present witnesses and other evidence during
the course of the investigation.  The investigator shall work with the Compliance Officer to
assess the anticipated scope of the investigation, who needs to be interviewed and what
records may be relevant to the investigation.
 
The investigator shall conduct an adequate, reliable and impartial investigation.  The
complainant and the accused may suggest additional witnesses and provide other
evidence during the course of the investigation.  When the initial complaint involves
allegations relating to conduct which took place outside of school or school-sponsored
activities, the investigation may include inquiries related to these allegations to determine
whether they resulted in continuing effects such as harassment in school settings. 
 
The investigation may consist of individual interviews with the complainant, the accused, and others
with knowledge relative to the allegations. The investigator may also evaluate any other information
and materials relevant to the investigation. The person reporting the alleged discrimination, parties,
parents/guardians, and witnesses shall be informed of the prohibition against retaliation for anyone’s
participation in the process and that conduct believed to be retaliatory should be reported. All
individuals providing statements or other information or participating in the investigation shall be
instructed to keep the matter confidential and to report any concerns about confidentiality to the
investigator.
 
If the investigation reveals that the conduct being investigated may involve a violation of criminal
law, the investigator shall promptly inform law enforcement authorities about the allegations in
accordance with existing procedures.inform law enforcement authorities about the allegations.
[13][20][21]
 
The obligation to conduct this investigation shall not be negated by the fact that a criminal or child
protective services investigation of the allegations is pending or has been concluded. The investigator
should coordinate with any other ongoing investigations of the allegations, including agreeing to
requests for a short delay in fulfilling the district’s investigative responsibilities during the fact-finding
portion of a criminal or child protective services investigation. Such delays shall not extend beyond
the time necessary to prevent interference with or disruption of the criminal or child protective
services investigation.
 
Step 3 – Investigative Report
 
The investigator shall prepare and submit a written report to the Compliance Officer within twenty
(20) days of the initial report of alleged discrimination, unless the nature of the allegations,
anticipated extent of the investigation, or the availability of witnesses requires the investigator and
the Compliance Officer to establish a different deadline due date. The parties shall be notified of the
anticipated date the investigative report will be completed and of any changes to the anticipated
deadline  due date during the course of the investigation.



3/5/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 5/6

 
The report shall include a summary of the investigation, a determination of whether the complaint
has been substantiated as factual, the information and evaluation that formed the basis for this
determination, whether the conduct violated this policy, and any other violation of law or Board
policy which may warrant further district action, and a recommended disposition of the complaint. An
investigation into discriminatory harassment or sexual harassment shall consider the record as a
whole and the totality of circumstances in determining whether a violation of this policy has
occurred, recognizing that persistent and pervasive conduct, when taken together, may be a violation
even when the separate incidents are not severe.
 
The complainant and the accused shall be informed of the outcome of the investigation,
for example, whether the investigator believes the allegations to be founded or
unfounded, including the recommended disposition within a reasonable time of the submission of
the written report. within a reasonable time of the submission of the written report.  The
accused shall not be notified of the individual remedies offered or provided to the
complainant.
 
Step 4 – District Action
 
If the investigation results in a finding that some or all of the allegations of the complaint are proven
and therefore  established and constitute a violation of this policy, the district shall take prompt,
corrective action designed to ensure that such conduct ceases and that no retaliation occurs. The
district shall promptly take appropriate steps to prevent the recurrence of the prohibited conduct and
to address the discriminatory effect the prohibited conduct had on the complainant and the school or
school program environment.  District staff shall document the corrective action taken and, where
not prohibited by law, inform the complainant. The Compliance Officer shall follow up by assessing
the effectiveness of the corrective action at reasonable intervals.
 
If an investigation results in a finding that a different law or Board policy was violated separately
from or in addition to violations of this policy, or that there are circumstances warranting further
action, such matters shall be addressed at the conclusion of this investigation or through disciplinary
or other appropriate referrals where further evaluation or investigation is necessary.
 
Disciplinary actions shall be consistent with Board policies and administrative regulations, district
procedures, applicable collective bargaining agreements, and state and federal laws.
 
Appeal Procedure

1. If the complainant or the accused is not satisfied with a finding made pursuant to the policy or
with the recommended corrective action, s/he may submit a written appeal to the Compliance
Officer within fifteen (15) days. If the Compliance Officer investigated the complaint, such
appeal shall be made to the Superintendent. 
 

2. The person individual receiving the appeal shall review the investigation and the investigative
report and may also conduct or designate another person to conduct a reasonable
supplemental investigation to assess the sufficiency and propriety of the prior investigation. 
 

3. The person handling the appeal shall prepare a written response to the appeal within twenty
(20) days. Copies of the response shall be provided to the complainant, the accused, and the
investigator who conducted the initial investigation.

Miscellaneous
 
Right to Alternative Complaint Procedure –
 
Nothing in this policy shall deny the right of any individual to pursue other avenues of recourse to
address concerns relating to prohibited harassment including initiating civil action, filing a complaint
with outside agencies, or seeking redress under state or federal law.



3/5/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 6/6

 

 

 
False Charges –
 
School personnel who knowingly make false charges of harassment or retaliation shall be subject to
disciplinary action, up to and including expulsion or discharge or civil action.[12]
 
 
 
 
 

Legal 1. 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq

2. 29 U.S.C. 206

3. 29 U.S.C. 621 et seq

4. 29 U.S.C. 794

5. 42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq

6. 42 U.S.C. 1981 et seq

7. 42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq

8. 42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq

9. 43 P.S. 336.3

10. 43 P.S. 951 et seq

11. U.S. Const. Amend. XIV, Equal Protection Clause

12. Pol. 317

13. Pol. 806

14. 29 CFR 1604.11

15. 29 CFR 1606.8

16. EEOC Enforcement Guidance on Harris v. Forklift Sys., Inc., November 9, 1993

17. EEOC Enforcement Guidance on Vicarious Employer Liability for Unlawful Harassment
by Supervisors, June 18, 1999

18. EEOC Policy Guidance on Current Issues of Sexual Harassment, March 19, 1990

16 PA Code 44.1 et seq

28 CFR 35.140

28 CFR Part 41

29 CFR Parts 1600-1691

Last Modified by Linda Cherashore on March 5, 2019

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-38
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/206
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/chapter-14
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/794
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-126
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-I
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-VI
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21F
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1959&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=694&chpt=0&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1955&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0222.
https://www.law.cornell.edu/constitution/amendmentxiv
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/29/1604.11
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/29/1606.8
https://www.eeoc.gov/policy/docs/harris.html
https://www.eeoc.gov/policy/docs/harassment.html
https://www.eeoc.gov/policy/docs/currentissues.html
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/016/chapter44/chap44toc.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/28/35.140
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/28/part-41
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/29/chapter-XIV


3/5/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/1

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

Book Policy Manual

Section 100 Programs

Title Report Form for Complaints of Discrimination/Discriminatory Harassment (to be renamed
Report Form for Complaints of Discrimination/Discriminatory Harassment-Employment
Practices)

Code 104AG1

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised January 22, 2018

Last Reviewed January 22, 2018

Please download and complete the form below.

Last Modified by Linda Cherashore on March 5, 2019



 

Page 1 of 1 

                                            No.  104AG1 

    

         ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINE 

         APPROVED: August 1, 2015 

         REVISED: January 22, 2018 

WEST CHESTER AREA 

SCHOOL DISTRICT 

104AG1 REPORT FORM FOR COMPLAINTS OF DISCRIMINATION/DISCRIMINATORY 

HARASSMENT-EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 

 

Complainant:   ________________________________________________________________________ 

Home Address: _______________________________________________________________________ 

Home Phone:   ________________________________________________________________________ 

School Building:  _____________________________________________________________________ 

Date of Alleged Incident(s):  ____________________________________________________________ 

 

Alleged discrimination/discriminatory harassment was based on:______________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Name of person you believe violated the district’s nondiscrimination/discriminatory harassment 

policy:______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

If the alleged discrimination/discriminatory harassment was directed against another person, identify 

the other person:  

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Describe the incident as clearly as possible, including any graphic, written, electronic, verbal or 

nonverbal acts (i.e. e.g. offensive jokes, slurs, epithets and name-calling, ridicule or mockery, insults, 

offensive objects or pictures, physical assaults or threats, intimidation, or other conduct), and any actions 

or activities. Attach additional pages if necessary:___________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

When and where the alleged incident(s) occurred:___________________________________________ 

List any witnesses who were present:  _____________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

This complaint is based on my honest belief that ________________________ has discriminated against 

me or another person. I certify that the information I have provided in this complaint is true, correct and 

complete to the best of my knowledge 

 

 

   

Complainant's Signature  Date 

 

 

  

Received By  Date 
 



3/5/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 1/3

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

Book Policy Manual

Section 300 Employees

Title Tobacco (to be renamed Tobacco/Nicotine)

Code 323

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Reviewed January 28, 2015

Purpose
 
The Board recognizes that tobacco, nicotine and nicotine delivery products presents a health
and safety hazard that can have serious consequences for the both users and the nonusers and the
safety and environment of the schools.
 
Definition
 
For purposes of this policy, tobacco includes a lighted or unlighted cigarette, cigar, cigarillo, little
cigar, pipe, or other smoking product or material and smokeless tobacco in any form including
chewing tobacco, snuff, dip or dissolvable tobacco pieces.[1]
 
For purposes of this policy, nicotine shall mean a product that contains or consists of
nicotine in a form that can be ingested by chewing, smoking, inhaling or through other
means.
 
For purposes of this policy, a nicotine delivery product shall mean a product or device used, intended
for use or designed for the purpose of ingesting nicotine or another substance.  This definition
includes, but is not limited to, any device or associated product used for what is commonly referred
to as vaping or juuling.
 
Authority
 
The Board prohibits use of tobacco, nicotine and nicotine delivery products use by
administrative, professional, and support employees in a school building and on any property, buses,
vans, and vehicles that are owned, leased, or controlled by the school district.[1][2]
 
The Board also prohibits use of tobacco, nicotine and nicotine delivery products by district
employees at school-sponsored activities that are held off school property. [1]
 
The district shall annually notify employees about the Board’s tobacco policy by distributing it
through handbooks, newsletters, posted notices, and other efficient methods.[1]
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2000&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0128.
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2000&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0128.
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/7183
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2000&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0128.


3/5/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/3

The Superintendent or designee shall notify employees about the Board's tobacco/nicotine
policy by publishing information in handbooks, newsletters, posters, and other efficient
methods such as posted notices, signs and on the district website. [1]
 
Guidelines
 
The Superintendent or designee may report incidents involving the sale of tobacco to minors by
employees on school property, at any school-sponsored activity or on a conveyance providing
transportation to or from a school or school-sponsored activity to the local police department that
has jurisdiction over the school’s property, in accordance with state law and regulations, the
procedures set forth in the memorandum of understanding with local law enforcement and Board
policies.[3][4][5][6][7][8]
 
In accordance with state law, the Superintendent shall annually, by July 31, report incidents of
possession, use, or sale of tobacco on school property to the Office for Safe Schools on the required
form.[4][8]
 
Employees found in violation of this policy will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action.[9]
 
A smoking cessation program shall be provided at the expense of the employee.
 
This policy does not prohibit the use of a patch, gum or lozenge as a smoking cessation
product by any employee who has a written order by a physician.
 
Reporting
 
The Superintendent shall annually, by July 31, report incidents of possession, use or sale
of tobacco, nicotine and nicotine delivery products on school property to the Office for
Safe Schools on the required form. [3][4]
 
Additional Provisions - Tobacco Only 
 
The Superintendent or designee may report incidents involving the sale of tobacco to
minors by employees on school property, at any school-sponsored activity or on a
conveyance providing transportation to or from a school or school-sponsored activity to
the school police, school resource officer (SRO) or to the local police department that has
jurisdiction over the school's property, in accordance with state law and regulations, the
procedures set forth in the memorandum of understanding with local law enforcement and
Board policies [3][4][5][6][7][8]
 
 
 
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=2&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter10/s10.22.html
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=63&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0


3/5/2019 BoardDocs® PL

https://www.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/3

 

 

Legal 1. 35 P.S. 1223.5

2. 20 U.S.C. 7183

3. 24 P.S. 1302.1-A

4. 24 P.S. 1303-A

5. 22 PA Code 10.2

6. 22 PA Code 10.22

7. 18 Pa. C.S.A. 6305

8. Pol. 805.1

9. Pol. 317

20 U.S.C. 7181 et seq

Last Modified by Linda Cherashore on March 5, 2019

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2000&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0128.
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/7183
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=2&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter10/s10.2.html
http://www.pacode.com/secure/data/022/chapter10/s10.22.html
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=63&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-70/subchapter-IV/part-C


WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

 
Between the Board of Education 

of the West Chester Area School District 
and the West Chester Area Education Association 

 

This Memorandum of Agreement is entered into this 25th day of March, 2019 made by and 

between the West Chester Area School District (WCASD) and the West Chester Area Education 

Association (WCAEA).  The WCASD and the WCAEA will be referred to collectively as "the Parties". 

 
WHEREAS, the WCASD and the WCAEA are parties to a collective bargaining agreement 

with a term of July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2022 (“CBA”); 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and conditions herein contained, the 

adequacy and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, 

the Parties agree to the following: 

1.  Whereas the CBA Section 9.031 (B) (c) (page 14) states Bargaining Unit Members  

enrolled in the IBC HDDP HD1-HC-1 as the core plan will be eligible for and Employer HSA 

contribution in the first two years those employees are initially enrolled in the plan; $500 in Year 

1 of enrollment; and $250 in Year 2 of enrollment.  Shall now be amended to read Bargaining 

Unit Members enrolled in the IBC HDDP HD1-HC-1 as the core plan, will be eligible for an 

Employer HSA contribution of $500 for each year those employees are enrolled in the plan. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this MOA on the date set forth 

herein. 

Attest: 

  WEST CHESTER AREA EDUCATION 
ASSOCIATION 

 

 Shawn Dzielawa 
Secretary 

By: Michele Curay-Cramer 
President 

Attest: 

  WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 

 Linda Cherashore 
Board Secretary 

By: Chris McCune 
President 

 



 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Property & Finance Committee 

March 25, 2019 – ACTION ITEMS 
 

 

Approval of 2019-20 Food Services Management Company RFP Award 

  

Approval is requested to approve the 2019-20 Food Services Management Company (FSMC) RFP award for food 

services to Aramark and the select custodial services to West Chester Area School District.  The FSMC Contract 

may be renewed by mutual agreement for up to four additional one year periods. 
 

I so move. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3/25/19 

 

 



Committee Meeting Minutes 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

March 18, 2019 – Property & Finance Committee 
 
Attending Committee Members:  Mr. Gary Bevilacqua-Chair, Mr. Brian Gallen, Dr. Karen Herrmann, Dr. Kate Shaw 
Other Board Members, Mr. Chris McCune, Mr. Randell Spackman, Mrs. Sue Tiernan  
Administration:  Mr. John Scully, Dr. James Scanlon, Mr. Justin Matys, Mr. Michael Wagman, Ms. Chong Lee 
Also Present:  Members of the public 

Action or outcomes from the meeting:  (Unless noted, all votes were 4-0.)  
The committee approved the February 19, 2019 Property & Finance Committee Minutes. Mr. Bevilacqua 
Mr. Scully reviewed the Budget Forecast Model.  The 2018-19 changes to expense projections are decreases to 
student transportation costs of $300,000; contracted Special Ed Aide $150,000, Charter schools tuitions 
$125,000, and curriculum proposals of $5,000. The net projection changes for 2018-19 resulted in an increase 
in fund balance of $580,000 which will be utilized to reduce the 2019-20 budget gap. The changes to the 2019-
20 expense projections include reductions in salary and benefits in the amounts of $91,292 and $106,059 
respectively, related to the removal of two positions related to the transitional program and one Middle School 
library aide position. Other 2019-20 expense reductions were to student transportation costs of $150,000, 
alternative education of $30,000, and Charter School tuitions of $125,000. For 2019-20 revenue projections 
there was a reduction in current real estate revenue of $11,236 and is the result of Delaware County’s tax 
increase reducing below the ACT 1 limit. The forecast model focuses on Chester County’s tax increase as it 
relates to an ACT 1 increase threshold. The changes to the 2019-20 projections and the utilization of the 2018-
19 savings will reduce the 2019-20 budget gap by $1,051,743.   Mr. Scully reviewed the Financial Summary – All 
funds on page 35 of the model which shows a net gap in 2019-20 of $1,560,000 assuming a tax increase up to 
the ACT 1 limit.  Mr. Scully discussed the 2019-20 budget timeline and advised that a proposed final 2019-20 
budget will be presented at the April P&F committee meeting. This is an informational item and no Board 
action is required. 
On page 32 of the model, Mr. Wagman reviewed the revised projections for the 2018-19 Technology Capital 
projects.  Included on the project list is a new $70,000 Lighting grid project at the three high schools that will 
replace some dated equipment and fix safety issues at the High School TV Studios. The lighting project will be 
funded from saving on other line items on the 2018-19 Technology Capital Plan. This is an informational item 
and no Board action is required. 

Mr. Scully / 
Mr. Wagman 

Mr. Scully provided the Committee with the background and results of the Food Service RFP.  The District was 
required to draft this RFP because the existing contract with Aramark expires June 30, 2019. Four food service 
management companies as well as Wayne Birster (“WCASD”) of the WCASD Custodial Services department 
attended the pre-bid meeting, but Aramark was the only vendor to submit a proposal for food services. WCASD 
submitted a proposal for only the custodial component.  The results of the bid were not uncommon. 
Throughout the state of Pennsylvania, many school districts had RFPs for food service management services 
this year and vendors appeared to be more interested in retaining existing clients rather than expanding their 
client base.  Additionally, since details of the current food services are disclosed during the RFP process, the 
lack of responses to our RFP is an indication that the current food service program is successful. 
It is the RFP committee’s recommendation to retain the service of our current vendor, Aramark, for our food 
service provider and to award the select custodial services portion to WCASD.  

• The cost of the custodial portion associated with the Aramark bid was $129,624. 
• WCASD provided a bid for custodial services of $130,785 with a 5% increase in each of the subsequent 

years. 
The following summarizes the specifics of the food service proposal from Aramark: 

• Aramark guaranteed a $250,000 return in 2019-20 to the District Cafeteria fund.  This is a significant 
increase over the current contractual guarantee.   

• Aramark guaranteed to return $1,255,424 to the District Cafeteria fund over the period 2019-20 
through 2023-24.  

The Committee recommends the approval of the Food Service portion of the RFP be awarded to Aramark and 
the select custodial services portion of the RFP be awarded to WCASD. 

Mr. Scully 

Items to be placed on board agenda 3/25/19: 
• Approval to award the RFP for food services to Aramark and the select custodial services to West 

Chester Area School District. 

 

Items to discuss at a later date:  
• The Committee requested that a monthly update on the construction progress and timeline at each 

P&F committee meeting.   
 

Next Meeting Date:   Monday, April 15, 2019 





























































































WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

March 25, 2019 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
 

CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTION 
 

Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of February 1, 2019 to February 28, 2019 

 
 

 
The Treasurer’s Report includes the schedules of the School District’s cash balances for the 
General Fund, Activity/Trust Funds, and Cafeteria Fund; the investments schedule for the 
General Fund, Capital Reserve and Capital Project Funds; the schedule of disbursements for all 
funds, and the debit memos and check register for all funds. The Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Lists total expenditures by fund for the period.  
 
Approval is requested for the Treasurer’s Report and the disbursements listed on the Statement 
of Disbursements Summary for the period of February 1 to February 28, 2019 totaling 
$15,175,956.41.  
 
I so move. 
 
 
 
 
The Treasurer’s Report is available in its entirety on the business office webpage and in the 
Board Meeting packet posted on School Board webpage at www.wcasd.net.  Please contact the 
School Board Secretary for any hard copies of the report. 
 
 
John T. Scully 
School Board Treasurer  
 
 
 

http://www.wcasd.net/






































































 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
March 25, 2019 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 
CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTION 

 
Approval of the February 28, 2019 Financial Report 

 
Approval is requested for the West Chester School District Financial Report for the month ending February 
28, 2019.  
 
I so move. 
 
2018-19 General Fund Financial Analysis 
 
The expenses and revenues as of February 2019 represent 8 months of financial activity for the District.  As of 
January month end, we have collected $1,458,631 more than our $169.3 million current real estate tax budget.  
Any outstanding taxes not collected by December 31st were submitted to the County on January 15 for 
collection in accordance with PA tax collection law. Year-to-date we have collected $1,004,000 in interim 
taxes which is $253,700 more than this time last year.  We will continue to receive interim tax revenues 
throughout the remainder of the school year and are optimistic that we will reach our budget of $1.2 million. 
 
The second largest local revenue category is Earned Income Tax which is trending in-line with last year’s 
collections as compared to budget. We have received $2,578,110 in transfer taxes year to date, this amount is 
behind last year and is the result of the size and timing of property transfers within the District.  
 
Our local revenues YTD total $190.1 million or 94.96 % of budget. State revenues are on target with budget, 
year to date we have received $7.8 million in combined Basic Education and Special Education subsidies 
which is on target with budget.  Federal revenues are also on target with budget.    
 
We have made revisions to our expenses for the 2018-19 school year. The revisions include a reduction of 
$476,500 in salaries due to attrition and vacancies, a $74,400 reduction of salaries and supplies related to the 
removal of the elementary summer school program, a reduction of charter school tuition expense in the 
amount of $1,525,000 due to lower than expected enrollments, a $150,000 reduction in contracted special 
education aides due to vacancies,  a reduction in student transportation in the amount of $300,000, and a 
reduction in curriculum proposals in the amount of $5,000. We reduced debt service expense in the amount of 
$167,548 as the result of lower than anticipated interest rates on the new debt issue and reduced educational 
supplies in the amount of $19,126 as a result of the PPA enrollment reconciliation. We will continue to 
monitor our expenses throughout the year and any savings recognized will be set aside to help offset the 
millage increase for 2019-20. 
 
And as you can see on the statement, we have budgeted $253.4 million in expenses and $246.8 million in 
revenues this year and we budgeted to use $6.6 million of our fund balance to close the gap between the 
expenses and revenues.  
 
Our fund balance is projected to be $29.9 million at June 30th but after an Act 1 tax increase we have a $1.6 
million budget gap to close for the 2019-20 budget so we may need to use a portion of the fund balance to 
close the gap.  
 
 
This concludes the financial report. 
 
John T. Scully, School Board Treasurer  



CURRENT REAL ESTATE 
INTERIM R. E. TAXES 
PUBLIC UTILITY R. T. 
EARNED INCOME TAXES 

REAL ESTATE TRANSFER 
DELIQU TAX LEVIED 
EARNINGS-INVESTMENTS 
PARKING FEES 
RENTALS 
CONTRIBUTIONS 
SUMMER SCHL TUffiON 

RCPTS OTHER LEA'S PA 
OUTDOOR EDU. TUffiON 
MISCELLANEOUS REVENU 
REF PRIOR YR EXPEN. 
ACTIVITY FEE REVENUE 

ADVERTISING REVENUE 

I LOCAL REVENUES 
BASIC INSTR. SUBSIDY 
TUffiON ORPHANS 
SPECIAL ED FUNDING 
PRRI/APS DIRECT PAYMENTS 

TRANSPORTATION SUB. 
RENT SUBSIDY 

MEDICAL-DENTAL SVCS. 
BASIC ED REIM SUPP 
SCHOOL SAFETY AND SECURITY 
READY TO LEARN BLOCK GRANT 
SOC SEC/MED SUBSIDY 

RETIREMENT SUBSIDY 

!STATE REVENUES 
IDEA 619 FUNDS 
IDEA PASS THROUGH 

TITLE I 
TITLE II
TITLE III LEP/IMMIGRAN 
TITLE N 
MA DIRECT SERVICES 

MA ADMIN TIME STUDY 

I FEDERAL PROGRAMS 

I TOTAL REVENUES 

West Chester Area School District 

2018-19 General Fund Including Technology and Federal Programs 

Revenue for the Month Ending February 28, 2019 

CURRENT YR YEAR TO DATE AVAILABLE YTD RECEIPTS 

BUDGET REVENUE BALANCE CURR VS. PRIOR YR 

168,126,224.00 169,584,855.07 (1,458,631.07) 6,511,819.41 

1,191,092.00 1,004,026.19 187,065.81 253,699.34 

200,000.00 192,821.01 7,178.99 9,541.32 

21,695,267.00 12,903,850.91 8,791,416.09 222,626.98 

4,308,364.00 2,578,110.01 1,730,253.99 (700,763.58) 

3,008,800.00 1,042,434.22 1,966,365.78 (91,874.15) 

499,990.00 1,965,875.38 (1,465,885.38) 969,639.09 

60,000.00 61,378.00 (1,378.00) (2,021.00) 

360,000.00 201,882.75 158,117.25 3,562.30 

20,000.00 19,291.41 708.59 (7,725.60) 

45,000.00 41,151.11 3,848.89 (6,321.21) 

78,000.00 54,292.66 23,707.34 (6,186.84) 

71,540.00 18,793.06 52,746.94 (18,525.94) 

76,000.00 54,131.76 21,868.24 52,182.49 

25,000.00 999.11 24,000.89 (36,056.24) 

380,485.00 332,505.00 47,980.00 (9,220.00) 
- 192.09 (192.09) (190.41) 

200,145,762.00 190,056,589.74 10,089,172.26 7,144,185.96 
8,208,631.00 4,709,154.50 3,499,476.50 232,110.50 

290,000.00 - 290,000.00 -

6,202,850.00 3,108,047.00 3,094,803.00 (116,646.53) 
- 2,780.68 (2,780.68) 2,780.68 

3,674,145.00 1,875,700.00 1,798,445.00 (43,921.00) 

1,112,753.00 363,584.69 749,168.31 (501,220.02) 

250,301.00 - 250,301.00 (250,301.11) 

3,468,141.00 3,468,140.90 0.10 (75,251.99) 
- 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 25,000.00 

399,095.00 399,095.00 - 399,095.00 

3,667,436.00 1,583,218.65 2,084,217.35 44,069.10 

16 009,741.00 2 508 247.64 13 501 493.36 155 654.24 

43,283,093.00 18,042,969.06 25,240,123.94 (128,631.13) 
3,724.00 - 3,724.00 -

1,311,916.00 - 1,311,916.00 (93.68) 

835,294.00 375,715.76 459,578.24 (102,066.22) 

262,337.00 135,475.91 126,861.09 (20,740.25) 

108,968.00 95,364.16 13,603.84 (10,925.76) 
- 47,911.06 (47,911.06) 42,917.98 

660,000.00 1,031,106.80 (371,106.80) 911,550.45 

30 000.00 33,689.54 (3 689.54) 10 226.81 

3,212,239.00 1,719,263.23 1,492,975.77 830,869.33 

246,641,094.00 209,818,822.03 36,822,271.97 7,846,424.16 

% OF BUDGET % OF BUDGET 
RECENED RECEIVED VS. 

CURRENT YR PRIOR YR 

100.87% 100.64% 
84.29% 63.14% 

96.41% 91.64% 
59.48% 59.62% 
59.84% 79.95% 

34.65% 37.70% 

393.18% 251.56% 
102.30% 105.67% 

56.08% 55.09% 

96.46% 135.09% 
91.45% 158.24% 

69.61% 19.51% 
26.27% 27.51% 

71.23% 1.96% 
4.00% 148.22% 

87.39% 89.81% 
0.00% 0.00% 

94.96% 94.47% 
57.37% 55.84% 

0.00% 0.00% 
50.11% 56.78% 

0.00% 0.00% 
51.05% 51.19% 
32.67% 79.17% 

0.00% 112.61% 
100.00% 100.00% 

0.00% 0.00% 

100.00% 0.00% 
43.17% 44.20% 
15.67% 15.63% 

41.69% 43.87% 
0.00% 0.00% 

0.00% 0.01% 

44.98% 48.n% 

51.64% 57.26% 

87.52% 90.99% 
0.00% 0.00% 

156.23% 29.16% 

112.30% 78.21% 

53.52% 29.58% 

85.07% 84.85% 



























452 440 438 444 445 451 437 448 
EB EG EX FH GA HILLS MCH PW 

Kindergarten 56 47 77 87 89 85 102 58 

Spectal Education - Kinder 8 6 8 4 13 8 12 5 

Grade1 71 70 101 81 92 78 92 79 
Special Education - Grade 1 6 B 11 6 8 6 6 7 

Grade 2 54 58 BO 77 77 90 102 72 

Special Education - Grade 2 10 6 14 11 15 7 11 6 

Grade 3 49 68 72 72 74 83 77 70 

Special Education - Grade 3 B 12 12 18 13 8 13 15 

Grade 4 76 54 79 75 85 93 96 BO 

Special Education - Grade 4 13 11 19 11 19 16 12 20 

Grade 5 63 59 76 93 76 97 83 64 

Special Education - Grade 5 19 11 15 13 18 16 17 26 

Grade 6 

Special Education - Grade 6 

Grade 7 

Special Education - Grade 7 

Grade 8 

Speclal Education - Grade 8 

Grade 9 

Special Education - Grade 9 

Grade 10 

Special Education -Grade 10 

Grade11 

Special Education - Grade 11 

Grade 12 

Special Education -Grade 12 

Regular Education 369 356 485 485 493 526 552 423 

Special Education 64 54 79 63 86 61 71 79 

In -District Total 433 410 564 548 579 587 623 502 

Out of District Totals 

Allemative Ed. Reg. Ed. 

AHernallve Ed. Special Ed. 
Charter Schools 

Achievement Cyber 

Agora Cyber 

Avon Grove 

Chester County Family Academy 

Chester Communfty Charter 
Collegium 

Commonwealth Connection - Cyber 

Insight 
Graystone Academy 

PA Distance 

Pa Leadership - Cyber 
Pennsylvania Cyber 

Pa Virtual - Cyber 

Reach - Cyber 
Renaissance Academy 
21st Century- Cyber 

Ou1slde PA 

GRAND TOTAL 433 410 564 548 579 587 623 502 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

453 447 

ss WT 

92 77 

13 12 

79 93 
6 10 

78 76 

8 8 

90 63 

13 15 

69 69 

23 16 

103 73 

8 16 

511 451 

71 77 

582 528 

582 528 

. --·--· --·-

Total 

Elementary 

770 

89 

836 

74 

764 

96 

718 

127 

776 

160 

787 

159 

4,651 

705 

5,356 

5,356 

328 

F.M. 

234 

42 

257 

46 

242 
46 

733 

134 
867 

867 

326 

P.M. 

328 

48 

288 
48 

271 
40 

887 

136 

1,023 

1,023 

327 223 222 

S.M. RUSTIN EAST 

240 

36 

246 
35 

279 

39 

273 262 

35 47 

292 283 

53 44 

283 255 

41 44 

273 265 

41 43 

765 1,121 1,065 

110 170 178 

875 1,291 1,243 

875 1,291 1,243 

221 Total 

HEND. Secondary OTHER TOTAL 

770 Kindergarten 

89 Special Educallon - Kinder 

836 Grade1 

74 Special Education - Grade 1 

764 Grade 2 

96 Spectal Education - Grade 2 

718 Grade 3 

127 Special Education - Grade 3 

776 Grade4 

160 Speclal Education - Grade 4 

787 Grade 5 

159 Special Education - Grade 5 

802 Grade 6 

126 Special Education - Grade 6 

791 Grade7 

129 Special Education - Grade 7 

792 Grade 8 

125 Special Education - Grade 8 

316 851 Grade 9 
43 125 Special Education -Grade 9 

280 855 Grade 10 

49 146 Special Education -Grade 10 

245 783 Grade 11 
37 122 Special Education -Grade 11 

270 808 Grade 12 
42 126 Speclal Education - Grade 12 

1,111 5,682 10,333 Regular Education 

171 899 1,604 Special Education 
1,282 6,581 11,937 In - District Total 

5 5 Allematlve Ed. Reg. Ed. 

159 159 AHernatfve Ed. Special Ed. 

Charter Schools 
1 1 Achievement Cyber 

6 6 Agora Cyber 

1 1 Avon Grove 
52 52 Chester County Family Academy 

Chester Community Charter 
297 297 Colleglum 

18 18 Commonwealth Connection - Cyber 
2 2 Insight 

Graystone Academy 
2 2 PA Distance 

103 103 Pa Leadership - Cyber 
2 2 Pennsylvania Cyber 
2 2 Pa Virtual -Cyber 

7 7 Reach - Cyber 
3 3 Renaissance Academy 

14 14 21st Cenlury-Cyber 

Outside PA 

1,282 6,581 674 12,611 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Enrollment Monthly Overview 2018-19 

In District Total EB EG 

August 2018 433 

September 2018 434 

October 2018 435 

November 2018 437 

December 2018 435 

January 2019 434 

February 2019 433 

March 2019 

April 2019 

May2019 

June 2019 

EX 

417 

415 

413 

412 
412 

411 

410 

FH GA HILLS MCH PW ss 

563 536 593 596 626 501 

564 538 583 595 621 502 

562 541 579 591 621 500 

563 546 578 588 628 500 

564 546 573 586 626 503 

565 548 581 587 623 501 

564 548 579 587 623 502 

Total Total 

WT Elementary F.M. P.M. S.M. RUSTIN EAST HEND. Secondary TOTAL 

579 520 5,364 879 1,021 885 1,302 1,261 1,298 6,646 12,010 

580 520 5,352 869 1,020 877 1,295 1,253 1,297 6,611 11,963 

584 526 5,352 872 1,020 878 1,292 1,254 1,295 6,611 11,963 

586 526 5,364 871 1,020 874 1,290 1,249 1,292 6,596 11,960 

585 527 5,357 872 1,022 874 1,290 1,250 1,288 6,596 11,953 

585 527 5,362 872 1,023 874 1,291 1,251 1,288 6,599 11,961 

582 528 5,356 867 1,023 875 1,291 1,243 1,282 6,581 11,937 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

March 25, 2019 
Spellman Administration Building 

7:00 pm 
 

Other Business 
 

 
 
 
Approval of the Memorandum of Understanding between Octorara Area School District 
and West Chester Area School District 
Approval is requested of the Memorandum of Understanding between Octorara Area School 
District (“OASD”) and West Chester Area School District (“WCASD”) to allow eligible WCASD 
high school students the opportunity to participate in the OASD Homeland Security, Law 
Enforcement, Firefighting, and Related Protective Services Program. 
 
I so move. 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

March 25, 2019 
Spellman Administration Building 

7:00 pm 
 

ADDENDUM  
 

 
 
XI. Other Business 
 

4. Approval of Resolution to Authorize the District Solicitor to terminate the 
Agreement between West Chester Area School District and E.R. Stuebner 
Construction, Inc. for Renovations and Additions at the East Goshen 
Elementary School  

 
 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

March 25, 2019 
Spellman Administration Building 

7:00 pm 
 

ADDENDUM  
 

 
ACTION ITEM 

 
Approval of Resolution to Authorize the District Solicitor to terminate the Agreement 
between West Chester Area School District and E.R. Stuebner Construction, Inc. for 
Renovations and Additions at the East Goshen Elementary School  
Approval is Requested of Resolution to Authorize the District Solicitor to terminate the 
Agreement dated April 25, 2018 between West Chester Area School District and E.R. 
Stuebner Construction, Inc. for Renovations and Additions at the East Goshen 
Elementary School for cause. 
 
I so move. 



Page 1 of 1 
 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CHESTER COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
The purpose of this resolution is to comply with the requirements of the Pennsylvania 

Public School Code of 1949, as amended (“School Code”) in order for the West Chester Area 
School District School Board (“School Board”) to terminate, the agreement dated April 25, 2018 
(“Contract”), between the West Chester Area School District (“School District”) and E.R. Stuebner 
Construction, Inc. (“Contractor”) for renovations and additions at the East Goshen Elementary 
School (“Project”) located at 800 North Chester Road, West Chester, Pennsylvania 19380. 

 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 NOW, this 25th day of March, 2019, it is hereby resolved by the School Board for the West 
Chester Area School District as follows: 
 

1. The Contract, at  Section 14.2, permits the School District (designated as “Owner” in 
the Contract), to terminate the Contract for cause. 

2. The School Board, through the School District administration, and in consultation with 
the architect employed by the School District for the Project, and the Solicitor, has determined 
that cause exists under the Contract for termination, and therefore approves the termination of 
the Contract with the Contractor for the Project. 

3. The officers of the School Board, the School District administration, and the Solicitor 
are authorized and directed to take whatever action is necessary and appropriate pursuant to the 
Contract to terminate the Contractor for the Project. 

4. Any and all actions taken by individuals acting on behalf of the School District prior to 
the date of this Resolution in furtherance of the termination of the Contract, and in furtherance of 
the School District’s business in this regard, are hereby ratified and confirmed. 

5. If any sentence, clause, action or part of this Resolution is for any reason found to be 
unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, such unconstitutionality, illegality or invalidity shall not affect or 
impair any of the remaining provisions, sentences, clauses, sections or part of this Resolution. It 
is hereby declared as the intent of the School District that this Resolution would have been 
adopted had such unconstitutional, illegal or invalid sentence, clause, section or part thereof not 
been included herein. 

6. All resolutions or parts of resolutions conflicting herewith are hereby repealed. 

Adopted this 25th day of March, 2019. 

ATTEST:     WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

     BY:         
Linda Cherashore    Chris McCune, President 
Board Secretary 

822172.1 822172.1 


	a Board Agenda - March  25
	b February 25 minutes draft
	c 2019.3.25 March PR
	d Consent Agenda - March  25
	e Mar 25 Ed Comm Action Item Board Pkt
	1 Action Items 3.25.19
	2 Mar 11 Ed Comm Mtg Minutes
	2 Overnight East HS Indoor Track State College, PA Sat-Sun 2.23-2.24.19
	2. Overnight Henderson HS Indoor Track State College, PA Sat-Sun 2.23-2.24.19
	3. Overnight East HS Wrestling Souderton, PA Fri-Sat 3.1-3.2.19
	4. Overnight East HS Wrestling Hershey, PA Wed-Sat 3.6-3.9.19
	5. Overnight Rustin HS Wrestling Hershey, PA Wed-Sat 3.6-3.9.19
	6. Overnight Henderson HS Wrestling Hershey, PA Thurs-Sat 3.7-3.9.19
	7. Overnight Henderson HS Swimming Lewisburg, PA Thurs-Sat 3.14-3.16.19
	8. Overnight Henderson HS DECA Orlando, FL Fri-Wed 4.26-5.1.19
	9. Overnight Henderson HS Spanish AP Lima, PE
	10. Overnight Henderson HS Italian-Latin Italy Wed-Fri 6.17-6.26.20
	11. Establish PMS Enrichment in STEAM
	12. Establish HHS Kids 4 Kids
	13. Revised Policy 918 PFE, 2nd Reading
	14. Revised Admin Guideline 918AG1 PFE Guidelines, 2nd Reading
	15. New Admin Guidelines 918AG2 Title I PFE school compacts, 2nd Reading
	16. Revised Policy 103 Nondisc.Disc Harassment-school class, 2nd Reading
	17. Revised Admin Guideline 103AG1 Nondisc. Disc Form, 2nd Read pg 1
	18. 103AG1 Comp Form Disc Harassment rev 2.2019 2nd pg
	19. Revised Policy 222 Tobacco.Nicotine, 2nd Reading
	20. Revised Policy 247 Hazing, 2nd Reading
	21. Revised Policy 249 Bullying.Cyberbullying, 2nd Reading

	f Pupil Services Meeting Minutes 031119
	g March 25 Personnel Committee Action Items Packet
	March 25 2019 Personnel Comm I so moves
	104 Nondisc.Disc. Har. Emp. Practices - 2nd Rdg.
	104AGI Rev. & Name Change - 2nd Rdg
	104AG1 Disc complaint form rev 2.2019
	323 Tobacco-Nicotine Rev. & Name Change - 2nd Rdg.
	MOU - HSA extension 2019

	h 3.25.19 PFC Action Item packet
	3.25.19 PFC Action Item packet
	3.25.19 PFC ACTION items
	3.18.19 PFC Committee Minutes

	First half FSMC contract
	2nd half FSMC contract

	j1 3.25.19 March Treasurer's Report packet
	Mar 2019 treasurers report
	2019.03 March Treasurer's Report
	2.1 thru 2.28.19 Statement of Disbursements Summary

	j2 3.25.19 Financial Report packet
	February 2019 finreport
	2.1 thru 228.19 Rev and Exp Rpt

	j3 OtherBusiness OASD MOU
	March 25 Addendum packet.pdf
	Addendum March Other Bus.
	March Addendum OB I so move
	RESOLUTION - Termination of ER Stuebner Construction Inc_




